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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income). the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2025, the profit including other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements™ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s *Code of
Ethics’. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

a) Computation of Expected Credit Loss on Loan Assets
Description of Key Audit Matter:
Ind AS 109 requires the Company to provide for impairment of its loan assets (financial
instruments) using the Expected Credit Losses (ECL) approach. ECL involves an estimation of
probability-weighted loss on financials instruments over their life, considering reasonable and

supporting information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions which could impact the credit quality of the Company’s loans and advances.
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In the process, a significant degree of judgement has been applied by the management in respect

of:

a) unbiased, probability weighted outcome under various scenarios;
b) time value of money;

c) impact arising from forward looking macro-economic factors and;
d) management overlays.

Applying these principles involves significant estimation in various aspects, such as:

a) grouping of borrowers based on homogeneity by using appropriate statistical techniques:
b) staging of loans and estimation of behavioural life;

¢) determining macro-economic factors impacting credit quality of receivables;

d) estimation of losses for loan products with no/minimal historical defaults.

In view of the high degree of management’s judgement involved in estimation of ECL. this was
considered to be a key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

We read and assessed the Company’s accounting policies for impairment of financial
assets and their compliance with Ind AS 109 and the governance framework approved by
the board of directors pursuant to Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) guidelines issued on
March 13, 2020.

Tested the assumptions used by the Company for staging of loan portfolio into various
categories and default buckets for determining the Probability of Default (PD) and Loss
Given Default (LGD) rates.

Assessed the criteria for staging of loans based on their past-due status. Tested samples of
performing (Stage 1) loans to assess, whether any loss indicators were present requiring
them to be classified under stage 2 or 3 as per Ind AS 109.

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation of ECL provision performed by the
Company.

Assessed the disclosures included in the Ind AS financial statements in respect of expected
credit losses with the requirements of Ind AS 107 and 1009.

b) Information System applications and controls

Description of Key Audit Matter:

The Company’s financial reporting processes are dependent on technology considering significant
number of transactions that are processed daily across multiple and discrete Information
Technology (‘IT”) systems. The financial accounting system of the Company is interfaced with
several other IT systems including Loan Management and Originating systems and several other
systemic workflows.

Due to the pervasive nature of role of information technology systems in financial reporting, the
testing of the general computer controls of these systems was considered to be a key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:
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e Obtained an understanding of the Company’s key IT systems, I'T General Controls which
covered access controls, program/system changes, program development and computer
operations.

e Tested the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of the general IT controls
over the key IT systems that are critical to financial reporting.

e Reviewed user access management, change management, segregation of duties, system
reconciliation controls and system application controls over key financial accounting and
reporting systems and related application controls.

* Reviewed the report of IS Audit carried by an independent firm pertaining to IT systems.

e Evaluated the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of the significant
accounts related IT automated controls which are relevant to the accuracy of system
calculation, and the consistency of data transmission.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date
of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate action as
applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it existe. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable. related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 were audited by predecessor
auditors who vide their audit report dated May 09, 2024, expressed an unmodified opinion on those
financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
as amended.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.
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(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the provisions of section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

iii.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refer Note 35 of the financial statements.

The Company has made provisions as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards for material foreseeable losses on derivative contracts — Refer Note 44.05 of the
financial statements. The Company did not have any other long-term contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year is in accordance
with Section 123 of the Act.
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vi.  Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the respective software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail of
the prior financial year has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements
for record retention.

For BATLIBOI & PUROHIT
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No.101048W

-

-

Janak Mehta
Partner
Membership No. 116976

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2025
ICAI UDIN: 25116976 BMOKPI6890
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report
(As referred to in paragraph ““1.” under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report to the members of Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i. (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The property, plant and equipment were physically verified during the year by the
management in accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our
opinion, provides for physical verification of all the property. plant and equipment at
reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanation given to us, no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of the immovable property
(other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are
duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in
the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible
assets during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been
initiated, or were pending, during the year against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules
made thereunder.

ii. (a) The financial instruments held for trading have been verified by the management with
the statement of holdings provided by the depository participant at regular intervals
and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5
crore, in aggregate, at any point of time during the year, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

iii. The Company has made investments, granted secured / unsecured loans to other
parties, during the year, in respect of which:

(a) The Company’s principal business is to give loans. Accordingly, reporting under the
paragraph 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.
(b) Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms

and conditions of the grant of loans, and investments made during the year, prima-
facie, are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.
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v.

vi.

vil.

(c)

(d)

(e)

)

(a)

In respect of the loans/ advances in the nature of loan, the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated by the Company. Considering
that the Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company engaged in the business of
granting loans, the entity-wise details of the amount, due date for payment and extent
of delay (that has been suggested in the Guidance Note on CARO 2020 issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India for reporting under this clause) have not
been reported since it is not practicable to furnish such details owing to the voluminous
nature of the data generated in the normal course of Company’s business. Further
except for the instances where there are delays in repayment of principal and/or interest
and in respect of which the Company has recognised necessary provisions in
accordance with the principles of Ind AS and the guidelines issued by the RBI for
Income Recognition and Asset Classification (which has been disclosed by the
Company in Note 43.27 of the financial statements), the parties are repaying the
principal amounts, as stipulated, and are also regular in payment of interest, as
applicable.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed, in respect of loans granted and advances in the nature of loans
provided by the Company. there is no overdue amount remaining outstanding for more
than 90 days as at the balance sheet date.

The Company’s principal business is to give loans. Accordingly, reporting under
paragraph 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during
the year. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are
no loans, investments, guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions
of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposits from the public in accordance with the provisions of section 73 to 76 or
any relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder. Accordingly. paragraph
3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government
under subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business
activities carried out by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not
applicable.

In Respect of Statutory Dues:

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the Company has generally been regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax. income tax and other
material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of income tax, goods and service tax, cess and other material
statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.
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viii.

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

According to information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income
tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, goods and service tax. customs duty, excise duty and cess
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute except the following:

Name of Amount Forum where

PE Nature | (Rs.In | Period to which the amount dispute is
statiite of dues mllimn) relates pending
! X Z5la-40 Commissioner of

|A.Y.2016-17to A.Y. 2018-19, i

Ioris P89 | Ay 2022030 ALY, 200304  (COMIE X
Tax Act, |Income (Appeals)

1961 Tax

56.90 1A.Y‘ 2008-09 to A.Y. 2009-10 High Court

| -y
*Net of amounts deposited in protest / advance tax.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which was not recorded in the books of account.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by
the management, we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any
lender during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has utilised the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the
purposes for which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-
term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable.
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X.

Xi.

Xil.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(a)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial
public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully,
partly or optionally) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is
not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company
and no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us. in our opinion and based
on the audit procedures performed by us, no report under sub-section (12) of section
143 of the Companies Act in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was filed with the Central Government during the
year or upto the date of this Report.

We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of audit
procedures.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a ‘nidhi’ company and it has not accepted any deposits. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xii)(a), paragraph 3(xii)(b) and paragraph 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company is in compliance with sections 177 and 188
of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all transactions with the related
parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued upto the date of
this Report, for the period under audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, provisions of section 192
of the Act and paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.
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XVIi.

XVil.

Xviil.

XiX.

XX.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(a)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is registered,
as required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking
Financial activities during the year without a valid certificate of registration (CoR)
from the RBI. Further as represented by the Management, the Company has not
engaged in Housing Finance Activities.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the “Group’ (as defined in
the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Direction 2016) does not have any
Core Investment Companies as part of the Group.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit
and the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.
and accordingly. requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit
procedures performed by us, there was no unspent amount as at the expiry of the
financial year, in respect of other than ongoing projects, which was required to be
transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Act in compliance with second
proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit
procedures performed by us, the Company did not have any ongoing project in terms
of Section 135 of the Act during the year. Accordingly, provision of sub-section (6) of
section 135 of the said Act and paragraph 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

For BATLIBOI & PUROHIT
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No.101048W

b

Janak Mehta

Partner

Membership No. 116976
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 27, 2025
ICAI UDIN: 25116976BMOKPI16890
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(As referred to in paragraph ‘2.(f)" under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report to the members of the Company of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Nuvama Wealth
Finance Limited (“the Company”™) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI™).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the Auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.




Batliboi & Purohit

Chartered Accountants

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICALI.

For BATLIBOI & PUROHIT
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No.101048W

FE B— '

Janak Mehta h
Partner
Membership No. 116976

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2025
ICAI UDIN: 25116976 BMOKPI16890



Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

{Currency ¢ Indian rupees in million)

Asat As at
Note March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Assets
Financial assets
{a) Cash and cash equivalents 3 3.154.75 1.374.43
{b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 4 194.04 22.21
(¢) Derivative financial instruments 5 2.085.73 2.179.88
(d) Securities held for trading b 833271 6.113.86
(e) Receivables 7
(1} Trade receivables 761.72 80.71
{ii) Other receivables 0.48 0.39
() Loans 8 31.708.68 30,728.17
{g) Investments 9 976.96 984.92
{h) Other financial assets 10 105.90 1.015.84
47,320.97 42.500.41
Non-financial ascets
(a) Current tax assets (net) 11 167.23 138.61
(b} Deferred tax assets (net) 12 211 16.57
{c) Property. Plant and Equipment 13 2.60 251
(d) Other Intangible assets 3 0.72 0.29
{e) Other non- financial assets 14 47.36 27.34
220.02 185.32
Total Assets 47.540.99 42,685.73
Liabilities and Equity
Financial liabilities
(a) Derivative financial instruments 5 457.29 1.073.19
(b) Trade pavables 15
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 4.43 3.35
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 125.77 141.78
small enterprises
(¢) Debt securities 16 36,143.97 31.224.38
(d) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 17 1.135.46 660.38
(e) Other financial liabilities 18 543.05 890,85
38.409.97 33.993.93
Non-financial liabilities
{a) Current tax liabilities (net) 19 19.21 42.67
(h) Provisions 20 38.11 27.92
(¢) Other non-financial liabilities 21 66.66 65.45
123.98 136.04
Equity
{a) Equity share capital 2 114.59 114.59
(b) Other equity 23 8.892.45 8.441.17
9,007.04 8,555.76
Total Liabilities and Equity 47.540.99 42.685.73
The accompanving notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements 1 1o 48

As per our report of even date attached.

For Batliboi & Purohit

Chartered Accountants

1C Al Firms Registration Number: 101048 W

e

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

u‘?_w

£

Ashish Kehair
Nbn-Exccutive Direcror
DIN: 07789972
Mumbai

Janak Mehta B
Parter
Membership No: 116976

har Agrawal Akshaya Mis
Executive Director & CEO
DIN: 08285408

Indonesia

W

ﬁ
Bharal Kalsi

Chief Financial Cficer
Mumbai
May 27. 2025

Non-Executive Director
DIN: 10118262
Mumbai

L f
Pooja Doshi
Company Secretary
Mumbai

Mumbai
May: 27, 2025




Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

Revenue from operations
Interest income

Dividend income

Fee and commission income
Net gain on fair value change

Other income
Total Revenue

Expenses

Finance costs

Fee and commission expenses
Impairment on financial instruments
Emplovee benefits expenses
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Other expenses

Total expenses
Profit before tax
ax expenses

(1) Net Current Tax
2) Deferred tax (net)

Profit after tax

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
a) Remeasurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans (OCT)
b) Income Tax - OCI - that will not be reclassified

Total

Total Comprehensive Income

Earnings per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10 each) (in Rs.):
Basic
Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For Batliboi Purohit

Chartered Accouatants

IC Al Firms Registration Number: 101048W

o T

Janak Mehta -
Partner
Membership No: 116976

Mumbai
May 27. 2025

Note

29

| to 48

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31. 2024

402564 3,397.64
347 6.86
86.27 290.00
2.207.58 1.775.51
3.79 0.14
6.326.75 5.470.15
3.264.44 2.732.51
208.31 163.80
6.29 42.88
1,066.72 880.79
0.62 1.42
54215 493.26
5,088.53 4,314.66
1.238.22 1.155.49
300.77 330.74
14.46 (44.67)
922.99 869.42
(4.80) 0.77
1.21 (0.19)
(3.59) 0.58
919.40 870.00
80.55 75.87
80.55 75.87

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Tushar Agrawal

Executive Director & CEO

DIN: 08285408
Indonesia

Bhardt Kalsi
Chief Financial Officer
Mumbai

May 27. 2025

.V\&_W

n-Executive Director

DIN; 07789972
Mumbai

Company Secretary
Mumbai

Non-Executive Director
DIN: 10118262
Mumbai




Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Currency - Indian rupees m mullion)

AL Equity Share Capital

Equity share Capital as at April 01.2023

Changes in Equity Share Capial due 1o pnor vein erons
Balance at the begmning of the current reporing vear
Shares Issued during the vear

Equity share Capital as at March 31.2024

Equity share Capital as at April 01,2024

Changes n Equity Share Capital due to pror yeal enors
Balance at the beginning of the current reporting vear
Shares Issved during the vear

Equity share Capital as at March 31,2028

B. Other Equin

oo of shares Amount
11459010500 114.50
1.14.55 Ill.‘-‘-!I I '.-1-?\-
I.IJ.:‘\'J,H}S-.EIII II-I;SG
T 145910500 114.59
.'.-I.FLJ.I-I.‘-.I'H ll-l-.ﬁ'J
I.II.S“‘IDS:IIU l]-i-.Si!

Particulars ( ll.pllal redempliun Securities Premium Statutory Reserve Retained Earnings = D“‘.Ima. Lapial Tl AtEable to
reserve Contribution -Equity | equity holders)
Balance as at April 01, 2023 13133 508637 1.009.69 I15.1% T.565.65
Profit for the sear - - B69 .42 - 869,42
Other Comprehensive Income - - - .58 - .58
23133 2,086,327 1.879.69 1518 KA15.65
ESOPs cost reversal - - - £
Transfer to Statutory Reserve - - 17388 - -
Transfer to Retained Eaming - - - (15 18) 2
Transfer to Capital redemption Resene 92,18 - - i N
Balance as at March 31. 2024 323.51 5.086.37 1.306.96 - RA41.17
Balance as at April 01, 2024 32351 5.086.37 1.196.96 1.634.33 - 844117
Profit for the year - % - G232 04 - 911,99
ther Comprehensive Income - - - {3.59) - (3.59)
32351 5.086.37 1.396.96 255373 - 9.360.57
ESOPs cost reversal - - - 1.70 - 1.70
Transfer v Statutory Reserve - - 184.60 (184600 - "
Tnterim Dividend paid (469 82y (469.82)
Transfer o Retained Earning - - = - - -
Transfer 1o Capital redemption Reserve - & - - - =
Balance as at March 31, 2025 32351 S.086.37 1.581.50 1.901.01 = 8.892.45

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For Batliboi & Purohit

Chanered Ace...ants

1C Al Firms Registration Number: [01048W

Janak Mehta -
Partner
Membership No: 116670

Mumbai

May 27, 2025

| to 48

For and on bepalfl of the Board of Directors

ushar Agrawal
Executive Director & CEO,
DIN: DE285408
Indonesia

/}.V

Bharat halsi

Chief Finaneial Officer
Mumbai

May 27. 2025

Kehair

n-Executive Director - Non-Executiv

DIN: 077894972 DIN: 10118262
Mumbai Mumbai
N
Podfa Doshi
Company Secretarny
Mumbai




Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for year ended March 31, 2025

{Currency : Indian rupees in million)

AL

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Fair value loss/(gain) of financial instruments
Provision for compensated absences and gratuity
Income from Investments
Impairment on financial instruments
| oss/(Profit) on sale of of Property, Plant and Equipment

Operating cash flow before working capital changes

Adjustments for working capital changes
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and other receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in Securities held for trading

{Increase)/Decrease in Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

{Increase)/Decrease in Other financial assets
(Increase)/Decrease in Non-financial assets

Increase/{ Decrease) in Trade payvables

Increase/( Decrease) in Non-financial labilities and Provisions

Increase/{ Decrease) in Derivative Financial Instrument and Other financial liahilites

Cash used in operations
Income taxes paid (Net of refund, if any)
Net cash (used) in operating activities -A
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of Property. Plant and Equipment and other intangible assets
Purchase of Investments
Sale of Investments
Interest Income from Investments
Net cash generated from investing activities - B
Cash flow from financing activities (Refer Note-2)
Proceeds from issuance of Debt Securities”
Proceeds/repayment from Borrowings other than Debt Securities’
Repayvment of Subordinated Liabilities
Dividend paid on equity shares
Net cash generated from financing activities - C

Net inerease/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalent as at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year

Operational cash flows from interest and dividends
Interest paid
Interest received
Dividend received
Dividend Paid

"Net figures have been reported on account of volume of transactions.

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the vear ended
March 31, 2024

1,238.22 1,155.49
.62 1.42
98.91 71.60
10.19 5.51
(57.25) (76.73)
6.29 42 88
- 0.18
1,296.98 1,200.35
{986.97) (8,212.74)
(6E4.84) 2.322.63
(2,170.20) 264348
(171.83) (2.11)
1,023.51 27.68
(20.02) (3.77)
(14.93) (2,698.46)
(2.38) 45.38
(1,125.07) 3R7.86
(2,855.75) (4.289.70)
(352.85) (420.01)
(3,208.60) (4,709.71)
(1.14) (0.61)
(1,934.79) (1.,932.55)
1,032.53 1,933.21]
67.47 66.79
64.07 66.84
401950 811945
475.08 (3,545.19)
- (151.75)
(469.82) -
4,924.85 4,419.51
1.780.32 (223.36)
1,374.43 1.597.79
3,154.75 1,374.43
2.506.18 2.426.04
3.490.02 3.142.65
347 6.86
4649.82 -




Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for year ended March 31, 2025
{Curreney @ Indian rupees in million)

Notes:

| Cash Flows Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in Ind As 7 (Statement of Cash Flows) preseribed under the Companies
Act {Indian Accounting Standards)Rules. 20135 under the Companies Act 2013,

2. Refer Note 37 for change in liahilities arising from financing activities.

As per our report of even date attached.

For Batliboi % Purohit For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accotintants

1C Al Firms Registration Number: 101043 W

=t onnn

Janak Mehta « ¢ Tusha¥ Agrawal Shish Kehair Akshaya Mishr

Partner Executive Director & CEO Non-Executive Director Non-Executive [Nector
Membership No: 116976 DN O82R5408 DIN; 07789972 DIN: 10118262
Indonesia Mumbai Mumbai

Bharat Kalsi Pooja Doshi
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai

May 27. 2025 May 27, 2025




Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

2.1

2.2

Corporate information:

Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited (‘the Company’) with CIN U67120MH1994PLC286057 a public
limited company domiciled and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in
India is wholly owned subsidiary of Nuvama Wealth Management Limited. The Ultimate Holding
Company of the company is PAGAC Ecstasy Pte. Ltd ("PAG"). The Registered office of the company
is located at 801- 804, Wing A, Building No. 3, Inspire BKC, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra
East, Mumbai — 400 051.

The Company was incorporated on October 27, 1994 and is registered with the Reserve Bank of India
(*RBI") with Registration No. B-13.02144 as a Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-
Banking Financial Company (NBFC-ND-SI) and the Company has been classified as Middle layer
(NBFC-ML) pursuant to RBI Scale Based regulation.

The Company is engaged in the business of advancing of loans against securities, advisory services and
fund based activities being investment and trading in capital market and other securities.

Material Accounting Policy Information

Basis of preparation:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended from time to time) and notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (referred to as
“the Act”™) along with other relevant provisions of the Act, the Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India
(Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023, guidelines issued by
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as applicable and other accounting principles generally
accepted In India. The accounting policies have been consistently applied, except in cases where a
newly issued Ind AS is initially adopted or when a revision to an existing Ind AS required a
change in the accounting policy previously in use. These financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on May 27, 2025 These financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments such as, derivative financial
instruments, and other financial instruments held for trading, which are required to be measured at fair
value. The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the
nearest million, except when otherwise indicated.

Presentation of financial statements:

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity in compliance with the Division I1I of the
Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12
months after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non—current).

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only
offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a
net basis in all of the following circumstances:




Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2.3

2.3.1

233

e The normal course of business
e The event of default
e The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and or its counterparties

Derivative assets and liabilities with master netting arrangements [e.g. ISDAs (International Swaps and
Derivatives Association)] are only presented net when they satisfy the eligibility of netting for all of the
above criteria and not just in the event of default.

Revenue Recognition

Interest Income:

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all
financial instruments measured at amortised cost and debt instrument measured at Fair Value through
Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCT). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
flows through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate a shorter period to the
gross carrying amount of financial instrument.

The EIR is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises interest income using a rate of return that
represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the financial asset.
Hence, it recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates charged at various stages, and other
characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments penalty interest and charges.

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit
risk, the adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset
in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income.

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial
assets other than credit-impaired assets.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is. therefore, regarded as *Stage 3. the Company
calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the amortised cost (net of expected credit loss) of the
financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to
calculating interest income on a gross basis

Delayed payment interest (penal charges and the like) levied on customers for delay in repayments /

non- payment of contractual cashflows is recognised on accrual and shown as other income.
Dividend income:

The Company recognised Dividend income when the Company’s right to receive the payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Company and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Fee Income:

The Company recognises fee income including advisory and syndication fees at a point in time in
accordance with the terms and contracts entered into between the Company and the counterparty.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

234
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2441

242

Foreign currency translation

Initial recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction.

Conversion at the Reporting date

Foreign currency monetary items are re-translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting
date. Nonmonetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign
currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences
All exchange differences are accounted in the Statement of Profit and Loss or other comprehensive
income as permitted under the relevant Ind AS.

Financial instruments:

A financial instrument is defined as any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Trade receivables and payables, loan
receivables, investments in securities, debt securities and other borrowings, preferential and equity
capital etc. are some examples of financial instruments.

Net gain on fair value changes

The Company designates certain financial assets for subsequent measurement at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL) or fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The Company
recognises gains on fair value change of financial assets measured at FVTPL and realised gains on
derecognition of financial asset measured at FVTPL and FVOCI on net basis in profit or loss.

Date of recognition:

Financial Assets and financial liabilities with exception of loans and borrowings are initially recognised
on the trade date, i.e. the date the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.
Loans are recognised when funds are transferred to the customers™ account. The Company recognises
borrowings when funds are available for utilisation to the Company:.

Initial measurement of financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.




Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2.4.3

244

Day 1 profit and loss:

When the transaction price of the financial instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the
fair value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market transactions, the
Company recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value in net gain / loss on fair
value changes. In those cases where fair value is based on models for which some of the inputs are not
observable, the difference between the transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only
recognised in profit or loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

Classification & measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities:

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets
and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is
to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. The changes in carrying value of financial assets is recognised in profit
and loss account.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. The changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised
in Other Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. The
Company measures all financial assets classified as FVTPL at fair value at each reporting date. The
changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Statement Profit and loss.

Financial assets and liabilities:
Amortized cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument
on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using f|
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Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any
loss allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost
of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Financial assets held for trading:

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased primarily
for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a portfolio of financial instruments
that are managed together, for which there evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit is taking.
Held-for-trading assets are recorded and measured in the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair
value are recognised in net gain / loss on fair value changes.

Investment in equity instruments:

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, unless
the management has elected to classify irrevocably some of its strategic equity investments to be
measured at FVOCI, when such instruments meet the definition of Equity under Ind AS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. Such classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Financial liabilities:

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments, financial guarantees,
and derivative financial liabilities.

Derivative financial instruments:

The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest
rate and market risk.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain
or loss 1s recognised in profit or loss.

Debt securities and other borrowed funds:

The Company measures debt issued and other borrowed funds at amortised cost at each reporting date.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue funds, and costs
that are an integral part of the EIR.

The Company issues certain non-convertible debentures, the return of which is linked to performance
of specified indices over the period of the debenture. Such debentures have a component of an
embedded derivative which is fair valued at a reporting date. The resultant ‘net unrealised loss or gain’
on the fair valuation of these embedded derivatives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
The debt component of such debentures is measured at amortised cost using yield to maturity basis.

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for trading and have
been either designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily requi
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2.6

measured at fair value under Ind AS 109. Management only designates an instrument at FVTPL upon
initial recognition when one of the following criteria are met. Such designation is determined on an

instrument-by-instrument basis.

e The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them on a different
basis; or

e The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities, which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy; or

e The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do not significantly
modify the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract, or it is clear with little or
no analysis when a similar instrument is first considered that separation of the embedded
derivative(s) is prohibited.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recorded in profit and loss with the exception of movements in fair value of
liabilities designated at FVTPL due to changes in the Company’s own credit risk. Such changes in fair
value are recorded in the Own credit reserve through OCI and do not get recycled to the profit or loss.
Interest earned or incurred on instruments designated at FVTPL is accrued in interest income or finance
cost, respectively, using the EIR, taking into account any discount/ premium and qualifying transaction
costs being an integral part of instrument. Interest earned on assets mandatorily required to be measured
at FVTPL is recorded using contractual interest rate.

Loan commitment

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, the Company is required to provide a loan
with pre-specified terms to the customer during the duration of commitment.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument,

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities
The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from
the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business
line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.
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2.7.2

2.8

Derecognition of financial Instruments:
Derecognition of financial asset

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The
Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the
transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either

e The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

e It retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumed a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows in full without material delay to third party under
pass through arrangement.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

e The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or
e The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset but has transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability
to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally
and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the
consideration paid, including modified contractual cash flow recognised as new financial liability, is
recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets:
The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all financial assets, other than financial
assets held at FVTPL, together with loan commitment and financial guarantee contracts. Equity

instruments are not subject to impairment.

Simplified approach

The Company follows “simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime expected credit loss (ECL)
at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to
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its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the receivables. However, if receivables
contain a significant financing component, the Company chooses as its accounting policy to measure
the loss allowance by applying general approach to measure ECL.

General approach

For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk
on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition. the Company
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected
credit losses (12m ECL). The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

The measurement of ECL is a product of the probability of default (PD) (i.e. it is an estimate of the
likelihood of default over a given time horizon), loss given default (LGD) (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default (EAD). The assessment of the PD and LGD is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information. As for the EAD, for financial assets,
this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date,
together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default date
determined based on historical trend. the Company’s understanding of the specific future financing
needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.

Company categories its financial assets at the reporting date into stages based on the days past due
(DPD) status as follows:

Stage 1: 0 to 30 days past due
Stage 2: 31 to 90 days past due
Stage 3: more than 90 days past due
Stage 1 assets:

Stage 1 assets includes financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. For these assets, 12-month ECL
(resulting from default events possible within 12 months from reporting date) are recognised.

Stage 2 assets:

Stage 2 Assets includes financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. For these assets lifetime ECLs are recognised.

Stage 3 assets:

Stage 3 for Assets considered credit-impaired the Company recognises the lifetime ECL for these loans.
The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.
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For financial assets, ECL is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The Company recognises an impairment loss
or reversal of impairment loss in the profit and loss statement with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

The recognition and measurement of ECL involves the use of estimation. It is necessary to formulate
multiple forward-looking economic forecasts and its impact as an integral part of ECL model. It is
possible that internal estimates of PD and LGD rates used in the ECL model may not always capture
all the characteristics of the market and the external environment as at the reporting date. To reflect this,
qualitative adjustments or overlays are made to reflect the emerging risks reasonably.

The Company’s product offering includes a facilities with a right to company to cancel and/or reduce
the facilities with stipulated notice. The Company does not limit its exposure to credit losses to the
contractual notice period. but. instead calculates ECL over a period that reflects the Company’s
expectations of the customer behaviour. its likelihood of default and the Company's future risk
mitigation procedures, which could include reducing or cancelling the facilities.

Collateral valuation:

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible. The
collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, power of attorney, credit enhancements such
as netting agreements. Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the Company’s balance sheet.
However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. It is generally assessed. at a
minimum, at inception and re-assessed on a monthly/quarterly basis. However, some collateral, for
example, securities relating to margin requirements, is valued daily.

To the extent possible, the company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as
collateral.

Write-offs:

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has no
reasonable expectation of recovery.

Determination of fair value:

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each reporting date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either;

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
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The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses
valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are
classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summatrised below:

Level 1 financial instruments:

Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company
considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and
liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes
available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments:

Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or
indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 financial instruments:

Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period. The Company periodically reviews its valuation techniques
including the adopted methodologies and model calibrations.

Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with its

financial instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that estimates
the expected net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual assets, in order to
reflect the credit risk of the individual counterparties for non-collateralised financial instruments.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and
reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period.

Operating leases:
Company as a lessee:

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is. if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases
except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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Right of use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred,
and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease
payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short term lease

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use asset and lease liabilities for short term leases of
property that has lease term of 12 months or less. The Company recognises lease payment associated
with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over lease term.

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts
to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is
computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all potential
equity shares,

Retirement and other employee benefit:

Provident fund and national pension scheme:

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme which is a
defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.
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2.14.4

Gratuity:

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of
the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that the employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that benefit is discounted to
determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any, is deducted. The present value
of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on independent actuarial valuation using
the Projected Unit Credit Method. Benefits in respect of gratuity are funded with an Insurance Group
approved by Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (IRDA).

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability, are recognised immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in
which they occur.

Re-measurement are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Compensated absences:

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their annual
leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises the charge in the
statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such accumulated leave entitlement based on
a valuation by an independent actuary. The cost of providing annual leave benefits is determined using
the projected unit credit method.

Share-based payment arrangements:

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees by the Holding Company and by the erstwhile
ultimate parent Group are measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant
date.

The fair value of Equity-settled share-based payments determined at the grant date is expensed over the
vesting period. based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity These includes Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs) where the right to
receive the difference between the SAR price and the market price of equity shares of the ultimate
parent Company on the date of exercise, either by way of cash or issuance of equity shares of the
Holding Company, is at the discretion of the Holding Company. These are classified as equity settled
share-based transaction.

In cases where the share options granted vest in instalments over the vesting period, the Group treats
each instalment as a separate grant, because each instalment has a different vesting period, and hence
the fair value of each instalment differs.

Property, plant and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day—to—day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful life are
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accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as
changes in accounting estimates.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values over their useful
lives. Depreciation is provided on a written down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its
intended use In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided up to the date of disposal.

As per the requirement of Schedule 1I of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated the
useful lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the Schedule II
for calculating the depreciation. The estimated useful lives of the Property, plant and equipment are as
follows:

Nature of assets Estimated useful lives
Building (other than Factory Building) 60 years

Vehicles 8 years

Office Equipment 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Computers — Servers and Networking 6 years

Computers - End user devices, such as degktops, 3 years

laptops, etc.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
property, plant and equipment and intangible asset recognized as of 1 April 2017 (transition date)
measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition
date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount of those
components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised at the time of replacement
thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets:

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the
expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Company. Intangible assets
are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.

The estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:
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Class of asset Useful life
Computers and data processing units — Servers and networks 6 years
Computer software 3-5 years

Impairment of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of
cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is
reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in
the statement of profit and loss. If at the reporting date there is an indication that a previously assessed
impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the impairment is reversed

subject to a maximum carrying value of the asset before impairment.

Provisions and other contingent liabilities:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability.

A contingent liability is:

(a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the entity; or

(b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

(1) it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation; or

(11) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the company
takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical
evidence from similar incidents.
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2.19.2

2.10.3

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it
is no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the
provision is reversed.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Financial Statements. However, contingent assets are
assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an economic benefit will arise, the asset and related
income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

Income tax expenses:

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax:

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from *profit
before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year:
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are

recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount
of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions :

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies. the management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the management
has made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Business model assessment:

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) and the business model test. The Company determines the business model
at a level that reflects how Company’s financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular
business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how
the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance is measured, the risks that affect the
performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are
compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised
prior to their maturity to understand the quantum, the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons
are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the
Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial
assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change
in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets

Significant increase in credit risk:

ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage
2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial
Recognition. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Company
takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking information.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, as described
below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Fair value of financial instruments:

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair values of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they
are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
estimation is required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of
liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding
value adjustments, correlation and volatility.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method:

The Company’s EIR methodology recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that
represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given
/ taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other
characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments and penalty interest and charges.

This estimation, by nature requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life
cycle of the instrument. as well expected changes India’s base rate and other fee income. expenses that
are integral part of the instrument.

Impairment of Financial assets:

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of
allowances.

The Company’s ECL calculations are outputs of models with a number of underlying assumptions
regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that
are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:
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PD calculation includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions.

«  The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a life-time expected credit loss and
the qualitative assessment.

«  The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis
«  Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs

«  Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such
as unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EAD and LGD

»  Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to
derive the economic inputs into the ECL models

It is Company s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust
when necessary.

Impairment of Non-Financial assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exist, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required. the
company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is higher of an
asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Where the carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

Provisions and contingent liabilities:

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element
of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and
regulatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course of its business.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case
and considers such outflows to be probable. the Company records a provision against the case. Where
the probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be
made, a contingent liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the
Company takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and
historical evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on these
estimates.
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Provisions for Income Taxes:

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including judgment
on whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax assessment can
involve complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time periods.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectation of future events that may have a financial impact on the company and
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Statement of Cash flows:

The Statement of Cash Flows is reported using the indirect method, whereby the net profit before tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or
financing cash flows. The Statement of Cash Flows from operating, investing and financing activities
of the Company are segregated.

Segment Reporting:

Identification of Segments -

Operating Segments are identified based on monitoring of operating results by the chief operating
decision maker (CODM) separately for the purpose of making decision about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss, and is measured
consistently with profit or loss of the Company.

Operating Segment is identified based on the nature of products and services, the different risks and
returns, and the internal business reporting system.

Segment Policies

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for
preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Company.

Further, inter-segment revenue have been accounted for based on the transaction price agreed to
between segments, which is primarily market based.

Unallocated Corporate Items include general corporate income and expenses, which are not attributable
to segments.

Standards issued but not yet effective along with other statutory amendments:

There are no new accounting standard is issued which are applicable to the company and not yet
effective as at reporting date.




Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- in current accounts

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Long term bank deposits with banks*
Accrued interest on fixed deposits

Encumbrances on fixed deposits held by the Company:

Fixed deposit pledged with bank for securing overdraft credit facilities

* Fixed deposit with bank earns interest at {ixed rate.
Derivative financial instruments

Breakup of Derivative financial instruments

Fair Value Assets

Premium paid on outstanding exchange traded options
Embedded derivatives in market-linked debentures ( Assets)

Fair Value Liabilities

Premium received on outstanding exchange traded options (including MTM)
Embedded derivatives in market-linked debentures (liahilities)

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

3.154.75 1,374.43
3,154.75 1.374.43
192,00 22.00
2.04 0.21
194.04 12.21
194.04 2221
194.04 22.21
1.187.75 1.350.30
897.98 829.58
2,085.73 2,179.88
248.39 206.62
208.90 776.57
457.29 1,073.19




Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(Currency  Indian rupees in milhon)

B Derivative linancial instruments

Asat March 31, 2025 —
Particulars Unit Notional units | Fair value Asset Unit Notional unils_f_lng\_
|
{i) Embedded derivatives* .
i PT—

In market hnhed debentures 857 9§ 268 06
Subtotal{i) 897,98 208.90
(i) Equity linked derivatives

Stock Futures No of Shares 1,28,07 29600 41 3 No of Shares 52.95,180 00 132 16

Options purchased No of Shares 18081 12000 #1355

Options sold (wnitten) No of Shares L8081, 12600 137 33

Less Offset with Margin (41 83) (132 16)
Subtotallii) 813,55 137.33
(iii) Index linked derivatives

Index Futures Index Umits 1.95.405 (0 3448 Index Units 2,05 800 00 4579

Ophons purchased Index Umits 2.88.650.00 | 37420

Opnons sold (written ) Index Units 2.77.950 00 11106

Less Offser with Margin 134.48) (45 79)
Subtotal(iii) 374.20 111.06
{iv) Commodity linked derivatives
Commadity Futures’ Cammuodity Units 2300000 543 | Commodity Units - -
Opnions purchased
Options sold (written ) Commodity LUnits - - Commodity Uinng - -
Less Offset with Margin 1543) =
<ot Wiv) . N
Total Derivative Financial Instruments Total 2,085.73 Total 487,29

— As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Unit Notional units Fair value Asset Unit Notional units | Fair value liability
(i) Embedded derivatives®

In market linked debentures K24 58 770 57
Subtotal(i) §29.58 776,57
(ii) Equity linked derivatives

Stock Futures No of Shares 20.22:315:00 laui No of Shares 600,512 00 771

Options purchased No of Shares 22182300 5307

Options sold (written| No of Shares 12,21 82300 3771

Less OFset with Margin (16.93) (771
Subtotal(ii) 5327 3771 |
(iii) Index linked derivatives

Tndex Futures Index Unis 251,220 00 5335 Index Unnts 3274 00 (IR

Options purchased Index L'nits 3.37.150 00 1.297 03

Options sold {written) Index LU'mits 5607654 (0 250 K2

Less Offser wath Margin {3233) 10L.08)
Subtotal(iii} 1.297.03 - = 256,82
{iv) Commaodity linked derivatives
Commodity Futures Commuodiny Unis 63 000 00 532 | Commodity Units 1.766 .00 043
Options purchased =
Options sold {written) Commaodity Unats - Commaodity Units 12.024 00 209
Less Offset with Margin {5:52) (0.43)
Subtotal{iv) - 2.09
Total Derivative Financial Instruments Total 2,179.88 Total 1.073.19

*An embedded dervative 1s a component of a hybnd instrument that also includes a non=denvative host contract with the eftect that some of the cash flows of the combimed instrument vary in 2
way similar to a stand-alone denvanve

Notional amount of future denvative assets meluding stock future. index future and commodity future as on March 31, 2025 Rs 9,445 01 mullion (PY - Rs 7.300.45 mullion) and Notonal
amount of future denvative habilities ncluding stock future and index future as on March 312025 Rs 10,450 95 nullion (PY - Rs 799 51 mulhon}

Hedging activities and derivatives
The Compams 15 exposed to certain nisks relating 1o 1ts ongoing business operations The pnimany nsks managed using dervative instruments are interest rate nisk and equity index nish. The
Company’s nisk. management strategy and how 1t 15 applied to manage nisk are explaimed in Note 42

Derivatives desig d as hedging instr

The Company has not designated amy denvatives as hedging mstruments
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Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

6. Securities held for trading

At Fair Value through Profit and Loss:

(1) Government Sccurities

(ii) Debt Securities

(iii) Exchange Traded Funds / Mutual funds
(iv) Equity Shares

(v) AIF / InvIT Fund

Gross Total
Less: Impairment loss allowance
Net Total

(1) Investments outside India
(i1) Investments in India

Total

Note: Refer note 42.D.2 for details of pledge created as collateral and contractually / legally restricted to use.

7. Receivables

a) Trade receivables
Receivables considered good - Unsecured
Receivables - Credit impaired

Less : Allowance for expected credit losses
Trade receivables (a)

b) Other receivables
Receivables considered good - Unsecured

Other receivables (b)

Total Receivables (a) + (b)

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

¢) Reconciliation of impairment allowance on trade receivables:

Impairment allowance measured as per simplified approach

Impairment allowance - Opening Balance
Add/ (less): asset originated or acquired (net)
Impairment allowance - Closing Balance

Notes:

1,184.03 2,184.89
337141 1.964.18
3.547.31 1.304.94

0.04 653.29
229.92 10.72
8,332.71 6,118.02
. (4.16)

8.332.71 6.113.86
8.332.71 6.113.86
8,332.71 6.113.86

761.72 82.95
29.59 23,61
(29.59) (25.85)
761.72 80.71

0.48 0.39
0.48 0.39
762.20 8110
25.85 22.98
3.74 2.87
29.59 25.85

1) No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other

person.

2) No trade or other receivables are due from firms or private companies in which directors is partner, a director or a member.




Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

7.d) Trade receivables Ageing:

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments”

2 Inbi N . - M than 3 Total
As at March 31. 2025 Unbilled Not Due Less ll‘l.:.ﬂ 6|6 m:':::s 1 1:2 vears 2-3veurs || Iu::a r:n

A. Gross receivables

Undisputed
Receivables - considered pood - 740,75 12.45 - -
Receivables - having significant increase in credit risk - - -
Receivables — credit impaired “ %

- - 762.20

24.78 1.63 - ERE. 29.59

Disputed
Receivables - considered good - - -
Receivables - having significant increase in credit risk - - - -
Receivables — credit impaired - - b

Total (A) - 749.75 1245 24.78 1.63 - 318 791.79

B. Allowance for Expected Credit Losses

Undisputed
Receivables - considered good - - = 2 x
Receivables - having significant increase in credit risk - - -
Recervables = credit impaired - - - 2478 1.63 -

Disputed
Receivables - considered good - - - - -
Receivables - having significant mcrease in credit risk - - # & -
Recevables — credit impaired & = = E =

Total (B) - = - 214.78 1.63 - 3.18 29.59

Net carrving amount (A)-(B) - 749,75 1245 - - - - 762.20

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments®

Asat March 31, 2024 Unbilled Not Due Less than 6 | 6 months - 1 Maore than 3 Total
S 1-2 years 2-3 years Viirs

h

A. Gross receivables

Undisputed
Receivables - considered pood - - 82,17 1.19 - - - 83.36
Receivables - having significant increase in credit risk - - - -
Receivables — credit impaired - - - in 6.20 1429 - 1361

Disputed
Receivables - considered pood - - - = - - =
Receivables - having significant increase in credit risk - - - = < - -
Receivables — credit impaired - - - % - 3 E "

Total {A) - - 82.17 431 6.20 14.29 - 106.97

B. Allowance for Expected Credit Losses

Undisputed
Recewvables - considered pood - - 1.36 (.89 - - - 2125
Receivables - having significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - =
Receivables — credit impaired - - - 312 6.20 1429 - 23.61

Disputed
Receivables - considered good - - - : % L 5 .
Receivables - having significant increase in credit risk - - H = % - =
Receivables — credit impaired A = 5 5 = = 3 <

Total (B) 2 = 1.36 4.01 6.20 14.29 = 25.86

Net carr\'ing amount (A)-(B) = - 80.82 0.29 - - - 81.10

“Where no due date of payment is specified in that case disclosure shall be from the date of the transaction.




Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
8. Loans (at Amortised cost)
Corporate credit - 5.41
Retail Credit 31.838.80 30.846.42
Gross Total 31.838.80 30,851.83
Less: Impairment loss allowance (Refer Note 8.A) (130.12) (123.66)
Net Total 31,708.68 30,728.17
Secured
- Loan against Securities 31.779.34 29.982.04
Unsecured
- ESOP funding 53.23 114.65
- Others 6.23 755.14
Gross Total 31,838.80 30,851.83
Less: Impairment loss allowance (Refer Note 8.A) (130.12) (123.66)
Net Total 31.708.68 30,728.17
Loans in India
Public sector - -
Others 31.838.80 30,851.83
Gross Total 31.838.80 30,851.83
Less: Impairment loss allowance (Refer Note 8I.A] (130.12) (123.66)
Net Total 31,708.68 30,728.17

Notes:
1. There is no loan outstanding as on March 31, 2025 with Directors, KMP, Promotors and related party in the nature of

demand loan or loan without specifying the term of repayment period.

2. For charge created on loans refer note 42.D.2.




£€8°158°0¢ 0€°008 £5°150°0€ 1ejoL
E - - paaiedw £|jenpiarpuj
Sunuaoyrad-uopN
0£'008 0£°008 - apei3 piepuely
€S710°0¢ = €57 150°0¢ apead Y3y
Suiuaojaag
%101 111 93638 119518 193618
sag[nanaeg
PTOT 1€ WHEN I SY
08'8€8°'1€ - 08'8€8°1€ 1ejo1
- - - pasreduwir A|jenpraipuj
Sururioprad-uoy
= - - opeld piepuel§
08'8¢8°1¢ - 08'8¢8°1¢ apesd Y3y
Sunuiojng
1ero], 111 931§ 11 93v)§ 19318
sienanaeg

STOT 1€ YHEBA JE SY

150) PaSILIOWY J€ SUBO']

"$2oueMO|[e JuduLedu jo ssold age pajudsaid

spunowe ay | uonedijisse(d a8e)s pua-1eak s Luedwo)) ayy uo paseq st 1paid 0} dnsodxd winwixew ay) pue Ajjenb JPaId 3y} SMOYS MO[Aq I|qP] |,

sjasse jo Apjenb yipaa) V'8

(uorpprw ur saadn. uerpuj : Aouaiun)))

(panunuod) SuUIWIIL)IS [BIdUBULY 0) SI)ON

PINWIT dUEUL] YI[BIAA BUIBANN




\ %Q_uuu. vy D

4 ~—~
SR
< s \%
EEa— __WI = . = = S— m = ..r.....__ .—w\ﬁza_& ) »
99°¢71 £8°158°0€ =1 1B IF 0T'€ 0€°008 9p°071 £5'150'0€ 2duE|Eq BUISO]) ..w
> \
o
F8Ie BL'TIT'S LE'] LY vre Lyie 1£898°L (12u) paardAl \VQ:W
sjuawfedal | papwFLo s1asse Moy
= = - = (zoo) (8L°¢) w00 8LS | 2318 01 || 23RIS
- = " = 'l LIYvsy (zg'1) (LOYST) [1 931§ 0] | 2FRIS
- a = - S)ASSE [BIDUBLL) JO JDJSURL ]
806 S0°6£9'77 - = £0°0 FsL 6L°06 1€1€9°7T 2ruejeq Suluadg
1.1 10) unowy 1.)H 10} junowy 1071 10y junowy 107 10] junowy
IUEAMO|Y BULLLIED §50.1%) IURMO||Y FUIALIRD S5045) DUEMOJY SULALIED §S015) DdUEMO|Y DuiLaae)) ss0.4%)
3 R signapeyg
111 2818 1193018 [ A8e)g
(L AMN |
2 paanedun y1paa ) panedwi npasd uoy
FZ0Z 15 YIIE[N Papud JE€aA ay} 10] JUIWIAOI / UONEI[IDU0IIY
71°0¢1 08°'8€8°1€ - = = = 0gl 08'8€8° 1€ Jdug[eq uiso] )y
9%°9 L6986 = - (e (e 008) 99°6 LTLRL] (10u) paAa1addl
spuawiiedar ; papeuiSiue $)asse WayN
- - - - - - - - 1 adeIs 0] || AdRIS
& . = = - - . . [1 adeig 01 [ 230§
$1088E [RIDURULY JO JAJSURL ],
99°€T1 £8°158'0¢ - . 0T’ 0008 901 £€180°0¢ duepeq SutwadQ
AREE] wunowy EREED] junowy 101 10 junowy 1A 10§ Junowy
DIUEMO|| Y SULALIB) $5045) UL MOV FurArie) sso.an DUBMO|Y FULLLIED $S0.01) DUEMO Y DULLLIE ) S804
_— 111 23818 e T SIR[nIIE]
o paneduii 31paa ) padredu Jpasd uoy
S707 '1¢ YE[Y papua TEak 1) J0j JUIWIADUL | UOTFBI[IDU0INY
“JuIFe)s pua eal uo
paseq st ofojiod Futpuay s Suedwo) I UM SUONIESURI] W) 1aRdwL 7)5] SIUEMO|[E PIJRIDOSSE PUT JUNOWE FULLLIED ss043 2 Juasardal _(1au) paatadal sjuawifedar ; pajeuISLIo S1asse WaN, |
“SIAWOISND [1B12J PUE $21210d105 0] SIIUBAPE PUR SURO] 10 S3dUBMO[[E )7 pur junowe Furued ssoad s Surdwo)) ) jo uoneauedal asim adeys sapraoad amsoppsip ursofjoy ay |
:S2UBAPE PUE SUBO] 10j SdUBMO[[E )T Suipuodsaiiod pue junowe SuldLied ssoad ul SISUBYD JO HONRIIDU0IIY
(panunuod) sjasse jo Apenb upaa)y v’y

(uonpw w seadnu uerpu] : £auauny))
(panuIuod) SHUAWI)B)§ [BIdDUBULY 0) SIJON]
PIJWIT ddUBUL YI[BIAN BUWBANN]



Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
9. Investments (at Amortised cost)
Investments in Government Securities (Treasury Bills)
T-BILL (182 days) 18.07.2024 50,00,000 units at Face value of 100 . 489.79
T-BILL {182 DAYS) 23.05.2024 50,00,000 units at Face value of 100 - 495.13
T-BILL (182 DAYS) 17.07.2025 50,00,000 units at Face value of 100 400.54
T-BILL (182 DAYS) 04.09.2025 50,00,000 units at Face value of 100 486.42
976.96 984.92
(i) Investments outside India
(i} Investments in India 976.96 984,92
Total 976.96 984.92
10, Other financial assets
(Unsecured considered good. unless stated otherwise)
Security Deposits 1.38 0.83
Deposits placed with exchange depositories 64.50 68.55
Share’ Debenture application money pending allotment - 233.00
Deposits- others 0.60 0.45
Margin placed with broker (refer note 5.C) 36.34 655.66
Receivable from exchange /clearing house (net) (refer note 5.C) 0.01 56.05
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 357 1.55
Gross Total 106.40 1.016.09
Less: Impairment loss allowance on deposits- others (0.50) (0.25)
Net Total 105.90 1,015.84
11. Current tax assets (net)
Advance income taxes (net of provision for tax) 167.23 138.61
167.23 138.61
12. Deferred tax assets / Liabilities (net) (refer note 33.C)
Deferred tax assets
Financial Asset
Expected credit loss ) 40.32 38.76
Unamortised processing fees - EIR on loan 12.69 10.72
Property. Plant and Equipment & Intangible assets
Difference between book and tax depreciation 0.02 0.21
Invetsment and other financials instruments
Unrealised loss on derivatives 53.40 13.45
Emplovee benefit obligations
Disallowances under section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 3.96 2.82
110.39 65.96
Deferred tax liabilities
Borrowing
Unamortised processing fees - EIR on Borrowing 19.42 26.97
Invetsment and other financials instruments
Fair valuation - securities held for trading 18.43
Unrealised gain on derivatives 70.43
108.28
Net Deferred tax asset /(Net Deferred tax liabilities) 2.11 |
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Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

14, Other non-financial assets

(Unsecured considered good, unless stated otherwise)

Input tax credit
Other deposits
Vendor Advances
Prepaid expenses

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received

Advances to employees

Others

15, Trade Payables

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

As at
Mareh 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

(i) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises

17.66 :
0.05 0.05
12.65 10.91
7.24 7.16
- 0.01
0.75 0.20
9.01 g.01
47.36 27.34
4.43 3.35
12557 141.78
130.20 145.13

Trade Payables includes Rs 4.43 Millions (March 31. 2024 Rs. 3.35 Millions) payable to “Suppliers” registered under the Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act. 2006. No interest has been paid / is payable by the Company during the year to “Suppliers” registered under this act. The aforementioned is

based on the responses received by the Company to its inquiries with suppliers with regard to applicability under the said Act.

15.B  Ageing of Trade Payables

Qutstanding

v for following periods from due date o

f pavments”

As at March 31, 2025 Unbilled More than 3 Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 1-3 years vears
MSME 345 0.98 - - - 4.43
Others 80.78 40,40 1.97 0.00 2,55 125.77
Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
Di sguted dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 84.23 41.47 1.97 0.00 2.55 130.20
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments®
As at March 31, 2024 Unbilled Morethian 3 Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 years venis
MSME 328 (.09 - - - 3.3%8
Others 74,83 63.20 1.20 2.55 - 141.78
Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
DisEmed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 78.09 63.29 1.20 2.55 - 145.13

“Where no due date of payment is specified in that case disclosure shall be from the date of the transaction.




Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in million)

16. Debt securities As at As at
at amortised cost March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
{Refer Note 16.A. 16.B and 16.C)
Redeemable non-convertible debentures (Secured) 32.317.68 25.329.81
Commercial paper (Unsecured) 4.010.00 6.130.00
Less: Unamortised discount (183.71) (235.43)
Total 36.143.97 31.224.38
Debt securities in India 36,143.97 31.224.38
Debt securities outside India ¥ -
Total 36,143.97 31,224.38
16. A Maturity profile and rate of interest of debt securities are set out below:
16. A. 1. Redeemable non-convertible debentures (Secured
Rate of Interest Ason
Hett td
Resldunl Mmarity 8% 1o 8.99% 9% o 9.99% 10% to 10.99% MLD* March 31, 2025
Upto 1 vear 53.72 50.00 d 7.519.23 7.622.95
Over | vear upto 3 vears 208.69 B.O81.18 - 13.656.93 22.936.80
Over 3 years - 263.41 276.34 O82.45 1,522.20
Sub-Total 35241 9.,294.59 276.34 22,158.61 32.081.95
Add: interest accrued ** 266.99
Less: unamortised issuance cost 131.26)
Tatal 32.317.68
Rate of Interest As on
Residual Maturity***
esidual Maturity 8% to 8.99% 9% 10 9.99% 10% t0 10.99% MLD* March 31, 2024
Upto 1 year - 44393 401.49 4.768.46 5.613.88
Over | year upto 3 years 11241 158.45 - 16.521.96 16,792.82
Over 3 vears - 263.41 276.34 2.357.00 2.896.75
Sub-Total 112.41 865.79 677.83 23.647.42 2530345
Add: interest accrued ** 50.50
Less: unamortised issuance cost (24.14)
Total 25,329.81
* MLD represents market linked debentures. The interest rate is linked to the performance of the underlying benchmark and is fluctuating in nature.
** Interest acerued but not due is payable on next interest payment date for respective ISINs,
***¢ Residual maturity is considered basis original maturity date and not on option date. :
16. A, 1I. Commercial Paper (CP):
Rate of Interest As on
Residual Maturity
esidual Maturity 8% to 8.99% 9% to 9.99% 10% to 10.99% March 31, 2025
Upto | vear 1.650.00 2.360.00 4.010.00
Sub-Total 1,650.00 2,360.00 - 4,010.00
Less: Unamortised Discount (183.71)
Total 3.826.29
Residual Maturity Rate of Interest As on
% 8% to 8.99% 9% to 9.99% 10% to 10.99%, March 31, 2024
Upto | vear 450.00 5.680.00 6.130.00
Sub-Total 450.00 5.680.00 - 6,130.00
Less: Unamortised Discount (235.43)
Toral 5,894.57
16.B Details of debt securities:

Redeemable non-convertible debentures - secured

Non-convertible debentures (Public issue):

Debentures are secured by way of a charge in favour of the Debenture Trustee on present and/or future receivables and/or pari passu charge on an identified immovable
property of the Company as may be decided mutually by our Company and the Debenture Trustee.

Market linked debentures and Non-Convertible debentures (Privately placed):

Market linked debentures are secured by first charge / pari passu charge, as the case may be, on property and on present & future receivables, loans, securities
investments & other financial assets.




Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

17. Borrowings other than Debt Securities
fat amortised cost)

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Secured
Term loan from NBFC 1,131.98
Unamortized EIR - Term Loan (1.70)
[March 31,2025: Secured by first pari pasu charge on all Moveable assets including current assets,
receivables both present and future and standard loan receivable with a minimum cover of 1.5x and
rate of interest is 9.75%
March 31.2024: Nil]
Interest accrued on term loan from NBFC
Interest accerued but not due on borrowings 5.18 3
Collateralised borrowing and lending obligation and Clearcorp repo order matching system - 659.85
(Secured by pledge of Government securities and Treasury-bills)
[March 31,2025: Nil
March 31,2024: Repayable on April 02,2024 Interest Payable in range of 7.15% to 7.40%)]
Accrued Interest on Repo Borrowing - 0.53
[Secured by pledge of Government securities]
1.135.46 66i.38
Borrowings in India 1.135.46 660.38
Borrowings outside India - -
1.135.46 660.38
17 A. Terms of repayment of term loans from NBFC:
: . Ason As on
Residual Maturity
) March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Upto | year 227.99 -
Over | year upto 3 vears 503.99 -
Sub-Total 1,131.98 -
Add: interest accrued 5.18 -
Less: Unamortized EIR - Term Loan (1.70) -

Total

1.135.46




Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
18. Other financial liabilities
Other payables 57.04 2.83
Advances from customers 163.22 350.80
Accrued salaries and benefits 247.93 217.22
Payable to exchange / clearing house (net) (refer note 5.C) 74.86 48.81
Provision for short sales (at Fair Value) - 271.19
543.05 890.85
19. Current tax liabilities (net)
Provision for taxation (net of advance tax and TDS asset) 19.21 42.67
19.21 42.67
20. Provisions
Gratuity & Compensated leave absences 29.10 18.91
Others 9.01 9.01
38.11 27.92
21. Other non-financial liabilities
Statutory liabilities® 65.29 60.78
Others 1:37 3.80
Income received in advance - 0.87
66.66 65.45

* Includes withholding taxes, provident fund, profession tax and other statutory dues payables.




Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
22.  Equity share capital
Authorised :
Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 4,16,20,000 416.20 4,16.20,000 416.20
Preference shares of Rs 10 each 3.13.80.000 313.80 3.13.80.000 313.80
7.30.00.000 730.00 7.30.00,000 730.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 1.14,59.105 114,59 1.14,59.105 114.59
1.14.59.105 114.59 1.14.59.105 114.59
22.A Reconciliation of number of shares
QOutstanding at the beginning of the year 1.14.59,105 114.59 1.14.59.105 114.59
Shares issued during the vear - - - A
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,14,59,105 114.59 1,14,59,105 114.59

22.B Terms/rights attached to equity shares :

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/-. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share
held.

In the event of liguidation of the Company, the equity shareholders will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company. after
distribution of all preferential amounts, if any, in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

22.C  Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No of shares %o holding No of shares % holding
Holding company
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited” 1,14.59,105 100.00% 1,14.59,105 100.00%
1,14,59.105 100.00% 1,14.59,105 100.00%

22.D Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Holding company
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited’ 1.14.59.105 100.00% 1.14.59,105 100.00%

1.14.59.105 100.00% 1,14.59.105 100.00%

# including 6 shares held by nominees of Nuvama Wealth Management Limited
22.E There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments for the sale of shares / disinvestment.
22.F Details of Shareholding of Promoters

For year ended March 31, 2025

% Change during
the vear

Nuvama Wealth Management Limited 1,14,59.105 100% Nil
PAGAC Esctasy Pte Limited (Ultimate holding company) - - -

Name of Promoter No. of Shares % of Total Shares

For vear ended March 31. 2024

% Change during
the vear

Nuvama Wealth Management Limited 1.14,59.105 100% Nil
PAGAC Esctasy Pte Limited (Ultimate holding company) - -

Name of Promoter No. of Shares % of Total Shares

22.G  During the year 2024-25. the Company has paid an Interim Dividend for FY 23-24 i second quarter FY 24-25 Rs. 309 40 million (2 27 per
share) and for FY24-25 in third quarter FY 24-25 Rs 16043 million (2 14 per share)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

e o

Il

Asat Ay at
March 31, 2025 March 31. 2024

Other Equity
Capital redemption reserve 32351 32351
Securities Premium Reserve 5.086.37 S.08637
Statutory Reserve 1.581.56 1.396.96
Retained Earnings 1.901.01 1.634.33
8.892.45 8.441.17

Nature and purpose of Reserves

Capital redemption reserve
The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Securities Premium Reserve
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes
such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Statutory Reserve

Reserve created under section 45-1C(1) in the Reserve Bank of India Act. 1934 a sum of not less than twenty per cent of its net profit
of every vear as disclosed in the statement of profit and loss and before any dividend is declared. No appropriation of any sum from
the reserve fund is permitted except for the purpose as may be specified by the Reserve Bank of India from time to time.

Retained Earnings
Retained earnings comprises of the Company’s undistributed carnings after taxes.

Deemed capital contribution - Equity
Deemed capital contribution relates to share options granted to eligible employees of the Group by the Edelweiss Financial Services

Limited. erstwhile parent company. under its employee share option plan.

Movement in Other Equity

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Capital redemption reserve
Opening Balance 32351 231.33
Add : Additions during the vear - 92.18
323.51 323.51
Securities Premium Reserve
Opening Balance 5.086.37 5.086.37
Add : Premium received on issue of equity shares - =
5.086.37 5.086.37
Statutory Reserve
Opening Balance 1.396.96 1.223.08
Add : Reserve created for the vear 184.60 173 88

1.581.56 1.396.96




Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

23.  Other Equity (continued)

IV. Retained Earnings

Opening Balance

Add: Profit/ (loss) for the year

Add: Other Comprehensive Income

Add: ESOPs cost Reversed

Add : Deemed Capital Contribution - Equity

Amount available for appropriation (a)
Appropriations:
Interim dividend on equity shares
Transter to Statutory Reserve
Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve
Appropriations (b)
Total V-(a-h)

V. Deemed capital contribution - Equity
Opening Balance

Add/(Less) : Additions/( Transter) during the year
Less: Transfer to Retained Earnings

Total = (I+I1+11I+IV+V)

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

1,634.33 1,009.69
922.99 869.42
(3.59) 0.58.
1.70 5.52

- 15.18
2,555.43 1,900.39

(469.82) s

(184.60) (173.88)
- (92.18)
(654.42) (266.06)
1,901.01 1,634.33
- 15.18
- (15.18)
8.802.45 8.441.17
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

24,

26.

27.

8.

Interest Income

On Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Interest income on Loans
Interest income on fixed deposits with Bank
Interest income from debt securities held till maturity
Other interest income
- On margin with brokers
- On others

On Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Interest income from debt securities held for trading

Dividend Income

Dividend on securities held for trading

Fee income
Service transferred at a point in time:
Advisory Fees

Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes
Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
On securities held for trading

On derivative financial instruments

Fair value changes
Realised
Unrealised

Other income

Penal Charges

Other

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
158243 2.882.70
19.27 1.35
57.25 76.73
0.93 1.07
10.96 31,72
353.80 404.07
4,025.64 3,397.64
347 6.86
347 6.86
86.27 290.00
86.27 290.00
2.330.44 1,598.41
(122.86) 177.10
2.207.58 1.775.51
2.109.21 1.847.11
98.37 (71.60)
2.207.58 1,775.51
374 =
0.05 0.14
3.79 0.14
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

29.

30.

Finance costs
On Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost

Interest on borrowings
- Interest on collateralised borrowing and lending operations
- Interest on Term Loan
- Discounting charges on commercial Papers

Interest on Redeemable non-convertible debentures

Interest on subordinated liabilities
- Dividend on preference shares

Other interest expense
- Finance and bank charges
- Collateralised borrowing and lending charges

Impairment on financial instruments

Loans

Receivables

Security Deposits

Investments/ Securities held for Trading
Bad Debts /write back

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Expense on share based payments

Staff welfare expenses

Notes:

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the yvear ended
March 31, 2024

112.54 226.41
39.94 .
644.07 415.05
2.311.06 1,948.23
: 4.03
142.11 125.36
14.72 13.43
3,264.44 273251
6.46 33.27
3.74 287
0.25 3
(4.16) 416
- 2.58
6.29 42.88
961.62 803.04
48.22 38.72
12.13 7.43
44,75 31.60
1.066.72 880.79

Nuvama Wealth Management Limited ("NWML") and Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (Company having significant influence over the
holding company tll March 30, 2023, "EFSL") has Employee Stock Option Plans (ESOP) & Stock Appreciation Rights Plans (SAR) in force,
Based on such ESOP/SAR schemes. NWML and FFSI has granted an ESOP/SAR option to acquire equity shares of NWML and EFSL that would
vest in a graded manner to Company’s employees. Based on group policy / arrangement, NWML and EFSL has charged the fair value of such stock
options. Company has accepted such cross charge and recognised amount of Rs. 12.13 million and the same is disclosed under the employee

benefit expense.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

31

Employee benefits expense (continued)

In accordance with Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, employees of the Company are entitled to
receive benefits under the provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which, both the employee and the Company contribute
monthly at a determined rate. These contributions are made to a recognized provident fund administered by Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner. The employees contribute 12% of their basic salary and the Company contributes an equal amount.

Amount of Rs.35.36 millions (March 31.2024: Rs. 28.24 millions) is recognised as expenses and included in "Employce benefits

a) Defined contribution plan - provident funds
expense’.
b) Defined benefit plan - gratuity

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for gratuity. a non-contributory defined benefit
arrangement providing lump-sum gratuity benefits expressed in terms of final monthly salary and year of service, covering all
employees. The plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement or termination of employment in accordance
with the rules laid down in the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out
as at March 31, 2025. The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost,
were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts
recognised in the Company’s financial statements as at balance sheet date.

Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Present Value of DBO at Start of the vear 76.34 60.06
Service Cost
a. Current Service Cost 10.12 8.55

b.Past Service Cost «

¢.Loss/(Gain) from Settlement -

Interest Cost 5.54 4.51
Benefits Paid (5.99) (3.96)
Re-measurements

a.Actuarial Loss/(Gain) from changes in demographic assumptions 0.37 -
b.Actuarial Loss/(Gain) from changed in financials assumptions 1.93 0.62
c.Actuarial Loss/(Gain) from experience over last past vear 342 311
Etfect of acquisition / (divestiture) -
Changes in foreign exchange rate -
Transfer In / (Out) 3.03 45
Present Value of DBO at end of the vear 95.66 76.34
Reconciliation of Fair Value of Plan Assets

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Fair Value of Plan Assets at start of the year 68.65 54.92
Contributions by Emplover 13.68 9.10
Benefits Paid (5.99) (3.96)
Interest Income Plan Assets 5.03 4.09
Re-measurements -
Return on plan assets excluding amount including in net interest on the net 0.92 4.50
defind benefit liability / (asset)

Effect of acquisition / (divestiture) -
Changes in foreign exchange rate =
Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of the vear 82.29 68.65
Actual Return on Plan Assets P 5.94 8.58
Expected Emplover Contributions for the cor By 13.50 7.50
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(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

Expenses recongnised in the Profit and Loss Account

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Service Cost
a.Current Service Cost 10.12 8.55
b.Past Service Cost 2
¢.Loss/(Gain) from Settlement -
Net Interest on net defind benetit liability / (asset) 0.51 0.42
Changes in forcign exchange rate -
Emplover Expenses 10.63 8.97
Net Liability / (Asset) recognised in the Balance sheet
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Present Value of DBO 95.66 76.34
Fair Value of Plan Assets §2.29 68.65
Liability / (Asset) recongised in the Balance Sheet 13.37 7.6Y9
Funded Status [Surplus/ (Deficit)] (13.37) (7.69)
Less: Amount not recognized as asset [Effect of limiting net assets to asset E -
ceiling]
(Liability) / Asset recongised in the Balance Sheet (13.37) (7.69)
Of which.Short term Liability - -
Experience Adjustment on Plan Liabilities:(Gain)/Loss 3.42 3.11
Percentage Break-down of Total Plan Assets
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Equity instruments - 3
Debt instruments = -
Real estate : "
Derivatives o I
Investment Funds with Insurance Company 99.86% 99.79%
Of which, Unit Linked 99.86% 99.79%,
Of which. Traditional/ Non-Unit Linked . J
Asset-backed securities - -
Structured debt . g
Cash and cash equivalents 0.14% 0.21%
Total 100% 100%
Actuarial assumptions:
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salary Growth Rate (%o p.a) 7.00% 7.00%
Discount Rate (% p.a) 6.40% 6.00%,
Withdrawal Rate (%o p.a)
Senior 19.00%, 22.00%
Middle 19.00% 22.00%
Junior 19.00% 22.00%
Mortality Rate IALM 2012-14 (Ultimate) | IALM 2012-14 (Ultimate)
Interest Rate on Net DBO / (Asset ) (% p.a) 6.90% 7.10%
Expected weighted average remaining working life (vears) 4 3
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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Movement in Other Comprehensive Income

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Balance at start of year (Loss)/ Gain (10.55) (11.32
Re-measurements on DBO

a.Actuarial Loss/(Gain) from changes in demographic assumptions (0.37) -
b.Actuarial Loss/(Gain) from changed in financials assumptions (1.93) (0.62)
¢.Actuarial Loss/(Gain) from experience over last past yedr (3.42) (3.11)
Re-measurements on Plan Assets

Return on plan assets excluding amount including in net interest on the net 0.92 4.50
defind benefit liability / (asset)

Re-measurements on asset ceiling

Changes in the effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling - -
excluding amount included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability/
(asset)

Balance at end of vear (Loss)/ Gain (15.35) (10.55)

Senitivity Analysis

DOB increases / (decreases ) by March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

1 % Increase in Salary Growth Rate 427 3.04

1 % Decrease in Salary Growth Rate (4.18) (2.86)
1 % Increase in Discount Rate (4.17) (2.84)
1 % Decrease in Discount Rate 4.34 3.07

1 % Increase in Withdrawal Rate (0.26) (0.13)
1 % Decrease in Withdrawal Rate 0.27 0.13

Mortality (Increase in expected lifetime by 1 year) 2.00 .

Mortality (Increase in expected lifetime by 3 year) 6.00 0.00

Note: The sensitivity is performed on the DBO at the respective valuation date by modifying one parameter whilst retaining other
parameters constani there are no changes from the previous year 1o the methods and assumptions underlving the sensitivity analyses.

Movement in Surplus / (Deficit)

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Surplus / (Deficit) at start of year (7.69) (5.14)
Net (Acquisition) / Divestiture

Net Tranfer (In)/ Out (3.93) (3.45)
Movement during the vear -
Current Service Cost (10.12) (8.55)
Past Service Cost Z
Net Interest on net DBO (0.51) (0.42)
Changes in foreign exchange rate s
Re-measurements (4.80) 0.77
Contributions / Benefits 13.68 9.10
Surplus / (Deficit) at end of year (13.37) (7.69)
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For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
32 Other expenses
Advertisement and business promotion 7.99 2.64
Auditors' remuneration ( refer note 32.A) 2.66 3.22
Clearing & custodian charges 7.06 12.49
Commission paid to Directors 5.00 -
Communication 14.32 8.50
Computer expenses 59.63 55.40
Computer software 19.87 14.13
Corporate social responsibility ( refer note 32.B) 18.55 1115
Dematerialisation charges 0.61 1.85
Directors' sitting fees 6.00 5.00
Electricity charges . 0.03
Goods & Service tax expenses 52.08 47.94
Insurance .52 0.42
Legal and professional fees 25.96 33.71
Loss on sale of of fixed assets - 0.18
Membership and subscription 9.29 8.86
Miscellaneous expenses 0.25 0.13
Office expenses 34.03 19.34
Outside Services - Others 8.86 5.77
Postage and courier 0.33 0.39
Printing and stationery 0.27 0.51
Rates and taxes 0.20 0.02
Rating support fees 572 5.01
Rent ( refer note 32.C) 109.28 90.17
Repairs and maintenance 0.02 0.05
ROC Expenses 0.02 0.02
Securities transaction tax 71.94 §0.27
Seminar & Conference 0.10 2
Stamp duty 11.54 15.09
Stock exchange expenses 2727 35.07
Travelling and conveyance 42.78 35.90
542.15 493.26
32.A Auditors' remuneration:
As a Auditor
Audit fees 1.10 1.15
Limited Review 1.22 ' 1.28
Other services including certification work (.23 0.63
Reimbursement of expenses 0.11 0.16
2.66 3.22
32.B Details of Corporate Social Responsibilty Expenditure:
a) Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 18.55 11.18
b) Amount of expenditure incurred 18.55 11.15

¢) Shortfall at the end of the year - -
d) Total of Previous Year's shorttall e 4
¢) Reason for shortfall NA NA
(1)- Education
(ii)- Well-being and Skill (i)- Education
) Nature of CSR activities Development (11}- Women
(iii) Environmental Empowerment
Sustainability
¢) Administrative cost towards CSR incurred included in above paid to fellow
subsidiary
h) Movement of provision during the year with respegitsraiahility incurred
by entering into a contractual obligation




Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

32.C

32D

Operating leases

The Company has taken premises on operating lease. Rental expenses for the year aggregated to Rs. 91,70 million (March 31.
2024 Rs.77.91 million) which has been included under the head Other expenses — Rent in the statement of profit and loss.

Cost sharing

Nuvama Wealth Managzement Limited. beina the holding company along with fellow subsidiaries incurs expenditure like common
senior management compensation cost, Group mediclaim. etc. which is for the common benefit of itself and its certain subsidiaries
including the Company. This cost so expended is reimbursed by the Company on the basis of number of employees. time spent by
employees of other companies. actual identifications etc. On the same lines. costs like rent. electricity charges incurred by the
Company for the benefit of fellow subsidiaries and associate companies (if any) are recovered as reimbursement by the Company
from the subsidiaries and associate companies on similar basis. Accordingly. and as identified by the management, the expenditure
heads in note 31 and 32 include reimbursements paid and are net of the reimbursements received based on the management’s best
estimate for which details are available in Note- 39




Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

33. Income Tax

33.A Component of Income Tax Expenses

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Current tax 299.10 334.47
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years 1.67 (3.73)
Deferred tax relating to temporary differences 14.46 (44.67)
Total Tax Charge for the year 315.23 286.07
Current Tax 300.77 330.74
Detferred Tax 14.46 (44.67)
33.B Reconciliation of total tax charge
Profit / (Loss) before Taxes 1,238.22 1,155.49
Statutory Income Tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Tax Charge at Statutory Rate 311.64 290.81
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years 1.67 (3.73)
Non deductible expenses
Dividend on Preference shares - 1.01
Interest on shortfall of advance tax 0.14 242
Donation expense 4.67 2.81
Others (2.88) (7.25)
Total tax expenses reported in Statement of Profit and Loss 315.23 286.07
Effective Income Tax Rate 25.46% 24.76%
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Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

34.

35.01

Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity sharcholders of the Company by the weighted average number

of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company with the weighted average

number of equity shares outstanding during the year adjusted for assumed conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Net profit / (loss) attributable to Equity holders of the Company (A) 922,99 869.42

Weighted average Number of Shares
- Number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,14.59,105.00 1,14,59.105.00
- Number of equity shares issued during the year - -

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the vear 1.14,59,105.00 1.14,59.105.00
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year

(based on the date of issue of shares) (B) 1,14,59.105.00 1.14,59,105.00
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in rupees) (A/B) 80.55 75.87

The basic and diluted earnings per share are the same as there are no dilutive/ potential equity shares issued or outstanding as at the end of the
year.

Contingent Liability and Capital Commitment:

In the ordinary course of business. the Company faces claims and assertions by various parties. The Company assesses such claims and
assertions and monitors the legal environment on an ongoing basis, with the assistance of external legal counsel, wherever necessary. The
Company records a liability for any claims where a potential loss is probable and capable of being estimated and discloses such matters in its
financial statements, if material. For potential losses that are considered possible, but not probable. the Company provides disclosure in the
financial statements but does not record a liability in its accounts unless the loss becomes probable.

Contingent Liability

As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Taxation matters related to income tax for various Assessment years in respect of which appeal 41.53 4.04
is pending

Civil Suit pending in High Court of Madras 2.50 2.50

The Company has received demand notices from tax authorities on account of disallowance of expenditure for earning exempt income under
Section 14A of Income Tax Act 1961 read with Rule 8D of the Income Tax Rules, 1962. The Company has filed appeal/s and is defending its
position. Based on the favourable outcome in Appellate proceedings in the past and as advised by the tax advisors, The Company is reasonably
certain about sustaining its position in the pending cases, Hence the possibility of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits on this
ground is remote.

The Company believes that the outcome of these proceedings. based on preceding year favourable tax order will not have a materially adverse
effect on the Company’s subsequent assessment orders on the same issues, financial position and results of operations.




Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

35.02 Capital Commitment

a) Uncalled liabilities on non-current investments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31,2024

.08

Segment Reporting

Primary Segment (Business segment)

The Company’s business 1s organised and management reviews the performance based on the business segments as mentioned below:

Segment

Activities covered

Wealth management

Wealth Mangement business includes lending against securities , distribution and dealing in
financial products.

Capital market

Capital Market business includes debt advisory and related activities.

Income for each segment has been specifically identified. Expenditure, assets and liabilities are either specifically identified with individual segments or have
been allocated to sepments on a systematic basis. Based on such allocations, sepment disclosures relating to revenue, results, assets and liabilitics have been

prepared.

Secondary Segment

Since the business operations of the Company are primarily concentrated in India, the Company is considered to operate only in the domestic segment and

therefore there is no reportable geographic segment.

Segment information for the Year ended March 31, 2025

T 7

Particulars Wealth Management Capital Market Unallocated Total
Segment revenues 5,501.06 792.71 3298 6.,326.75
Segment results 1,174.58 20,68 4296 1,238.22
Segment assets 44,175.11 3,187.54 178.34 47,540.99
Segment liabilities 35,901.91 2,603.91 28.13 38.,533.95
Segment information for the Year ended March 31, 2024
Particulars Wealth Management Capital Market Unallocated Total
Segment revenues 4,571.43 895.05 367 5.470.15
Segment results 994.42 168.19 (7.13) 1,155.49
Segment assets 39,910.58 2,610.95 164.20 42,685.73
Segment liabilities 31,547.92 2.169.58 112.47 34,129.97
Cash Flow Disclosure
Change in Liabilities arising from financing acitivies
Particulars Al A Cash Flows(Net) Changes in Fair value Other o
) April 01,2024 - - B March 31, 2025
Debt Securities 31,224.38 4.919.59 - - 36,143.97
Borrowings 660,38 475.08 - - 1,135.46
(other than debt securities)
Dividend Paid on equitv share - (469.82) (469.82)
31.884.76 4,924 .85 - - 36.809.61
== ==
Particulars g Cash Flows(Net)  Changes in Fair val Other Asat
' April 01,2023 ' e fees i Al vaue ¢ March 31, 2024
Debt Securities 23,104.93 8,119.45 - - 31,224.38
Borrowings 4.208.57 (3.548.19) - - 660.38
tother than debt securities)
Subordinated Liahilities 151.75 {151,75) - L L
27.468.25 4,419.51 - Tl 31.884.76

o n
~ {C_‘




Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

38. Maturity Analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or
settled. Derivatives (excluding embedded derivatives), securities held for trading have been classified to mature and/or be
repaid within 12 months. regardless of the actual contractual maturities of the products. With regard to loans and advances to
customers. the company uses the same basis of expected repayment behaviour as used for estimating the EIR.

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Within 12 After 12 Within 12 After 12
Particulars Total Total
months months months months
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3.154.75 - 3.154.75 1.374.43 - 1.374.43
Bank balances other than cash and
cash equivalents 194.04 - 194.04 22.21 - 22.21
Derivative financial instruments 1,197.18 88R.55 2.085.73 1.356.37 823.51 2.179.88
Securities held for trading 8.332.71 - 8.332.71 6.113.86 - 6.113.86
Trade receivables 761.72 (.00 761.72 80.71 - 80.71
Other receivables 0.48 - 0.48 0.39 s 0.39
Loans 31.708.68 E 31.708.68 30.728.17 - 30.728.17
Investments 976.96 - 976.96 984,92 - 08492
Other financial assets 39.92 65.98 105.90 946.26 69.58 1.015.84
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) - 167.23 167.23 - 138.61 138.61
Deferred tax assets (net) 2.11 - 2.11 16.57 - 16.57
Property. Plant and Equipment - 2.60 2.60 - 2.51 2.51
Other Intangible assets - 0.72 0.72 - 0.29 0.29
Other non- financial assets 31.08 16.28 47.36 11.12 16,22 27.34
Total Assets 46,399.63 1,141.36 47,540.99 41,635.01 1,050.72 42,685.73
Financial Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments 347.00 110.29 457.29 875.75 197.44 1.073.19
Trade payables 130.20 - 130.20 145.13 - 145.13
Debt securities 11,675.26 24.468.71 36.143.97 11.546.83 19.677.55 31,224.38
Borrowings (other than debt
securities) 233.17 902.29 1.135.46 660.38 - 660.38
Other financial liabilities 543.05 - 543.05 890.85 - 890.85
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) 19.21 B 19.21 42.67 - 42.67
Provisions 15.72 22.39 38.11 11.22 16.70 27.92
Other non-financial liabilities 66.41 0.25 66.66 64.38 1.07 65.45
Total Liabilities 13,030.02 25,503.93 38.533.95 14,237.21 19.892.76 34.120.97
Net Assets 33.369.62  (24.362.57) 9.007.04 27.397.80  (18.842.04) 8.555.76
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Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

40. Capital Management
The primary objectives of the Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed capital requirements
from its regulators and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value.
The Pillars of its policy are as follows:
a) Maintain diversity of sources of financing and spreading the maturity across tenure buckets in order to minimize liquidity risk.

b) Maintain investment grade ratings for all its liability issuances domestically and internationally by ensuring that the financial strength of the balance sheets
is preserved.

¢) Manage financial market risks arising from interest rate, equity prices and minimise the impact of market volatility on €arnings,
d) Leverage optimally in order to maximise shareholder returns while maintaining strength and flexibility of balance sheet.

This framework is adjusted based on underlving macro-economic factors affecting business environment, financial market conditions and interest rates
environment.

Regulatory Capital
The Company, being an NBFC, has to maintain a minimum capital 1o risk-weighted asset ratio of 15% in accordance with Master Direction — Reserve Bank
of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 issued vide Master Direction DoR.FIN.REC.No. 045/03,10.119/2023-

24 dated October 19, 2023 as amended.

The regulatory capital is computed as below:

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Capital Funds

Net awned funds (Tier | capital) 8,856.02 8.531.65

Tier 1l capital 130.12 123.66
Total capital 8,986.14 8,655.31
Total risk weighted assets/ exposures 43.049.14 39.458.82
% of capital funds to risk weighted assets/exposures:

Tier 1 capital 20.57% 21.63%

Tier 1l capital 0.30% 0.31%

Total capital Funds 20.87% 21.94%

No changes have been made 1o the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years. However, they are under constant review by the Board.




Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

41. Risk Management
42.A  Introduction and risk profile
Risk is an inherent part of Company’s business activities. When the Company extends a corporate or retail loan. buys or sells securities in market, or offers other products or
services. the Company takes on some degree of risk. The Company's overall ehjective is o manage its businesses, and the associated risks, in a manner that balances serving the
interests of its customers and investors and protects the safety and soundness of the Company.
The Company believes that effective risk manasement requires: o .
1} Acceptance of responsibility, including identification and escalation of risk issues, by all individuals within the Company:
2} Ownership of risk identification. data and within each of the lines of business and Corporate; and
3} Firmwide structures for risk governance
The Company strives for continual improvement through efforts w enhance controls. ongoing employee training and development and other measures.
42.B  Risk Management Structure
We have a well-defined risk management policy framework for risk identification, assessment and control to effectively manage risks associated with the various business
activities. The risk function is monitored primarily by the business risk group. The Company has also established a Global Risk Committee that is responsible for managing the
risk arising out of various business activities at a central level.
Our risk policy that the margin requirements are conservative to be able to withstand market volatility and scenarios of sharply declining prices. As a result,
we follow conservative lending norms. The Company centralises the risk monitoring systems 1o monitor our client's credit exposure which is in addition to the monitoring
undertaken by the respective businesses.
The Company s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s nisk management framewaork. The board has established the
Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The Committee holds regular meetings and report 1o
board on its activities.
The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company s risk management policies and procedures. and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by mternal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular
and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures. the results of which are reported to the audit committee.
42.C  Risk mirigation and risk culture
The Company’s busi processes ensure complete independence of functions and a segregation of responsibilities, Credit appraisal & credit control processes, centralised
operations unit, independent audit unit for checking compliance with the prescribed policies and approving loans at transaction level as well as our risk management processes
and policies allow layers of multiple checks and verifications. Our key business processes are regularly monitored by the head of our business or operations. Our loan approval
and administration procedures, collection and enforcement procedures are designed w minimise delinguencies and maximise recoveries.
At all kevels of the Company’s operations. specifically tailored nsk reponts are prepared and distributed in order 1o ensure that all business divisions have access to extensive,
necessary and up—to—date mformation,
It is the Company's policy that a monthly briefing is given to the Board of Directors and all other relevant imembers of the Company in the utilisation of market limits, proprietary
investments and liquidity. plus any other risk developments.
It is the Company's policy to ensure that a robust risk awareness is embedded in its organisational risk culture. Emplovees are expected to take ownership and be accountable for
the risks the Company is exposed to. The Company's continuous training and development emphasises that employees are made aware of the Company's nisk appetite and they
are supported in their roles and responsibilities to monitor and keep their exposure to risk within the Company's risk appetite limits. Compli breaches and internal audit
findings are unportant elements of employees’ annual ratings and remuneration reviews.
4.0 Tvpes of Risks
The Company's risks are generally categorized in the following risk types:
; Py et : :
Notes |Risks Arising from Measurement, monitoring and management of risk |
42.D.1 |Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial |Arises principally from financing, dealing in Corporate Bonds.|Measured as the amount that could be lost if a customer or counterparty fails
loss if'a customer or counterparty [investments in Mutual Fund, Equity, but also from certain other|to make repayments:
fails o meet an obligation under |products such as derivatives Monitored using various internal risk management measures and within
a contract. limits approved by individuals within a framework of delegated authorities:
and
Managed through a robust risk control framework, which outlines clear and
consistent policies. principles and puidance for risk managers.
42.D.2 | Liguidity risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that we |Liquidity sk arises from mismatches in the timing of cash flows. [Measured using a range of metrics. including Asset Liability mismatch. Debt
do not have sufficient financial Equity Ratio
resources to meet our obligations | Arises when illiquid asset positions cannot be funded at the Repular monitoring of funding levels to ensure to meet the requirement for
as they fall due or that we can  |expected terms and when required, Business and maturity of our liabilities.
nily do 50 at an excessive cost g - -
i et bt Maintain diverse sources of funding and liquid assets to facilitate flexibility
in meeting our liquidity requirements of the Company.
42.D.3 |Market risk

Market risk is the risk that Exposure to market risk is separated ino two portfolios: trading | Measured using sensitivities, detailed picture of potential gains and losses for
movements in market factors, and non-trading. a range of market movements and scenarios.
such as Interest rates. equity Monitored using measures. including the sensitivity of net interest income.

prices and Index prices. will
reduce DUF Ircome. oF the value of] Managed using risk limits approved by the risk management committee.
our portfolios.




Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

42,

Risk Management (continued)

42.D.1 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. and arises principally from
the Company's Trade receivables and Loans, The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtains sufficient collateral, where appropriate.
as & means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. In case the loans are to be restructured, similar credit assessment process 15 followed by the Company.

The Company s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, pement also considers the factors that may
influence the credit risk of its customer base. including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate.

The Company manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual counterparties' Groups (Single Borrowing Limit Group
Borrowing Limit) and for industry concentrations. and by monitoring exposures in relation to such limits,

Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on its credit worthiness and historical dealings with the Company and market intelligence. Outstanding customer receivables are

regularly monitored. The credit quality review process aims 1o allow the Company 1o assess the potential loss as a result of the risks 1o which it is exposed and take corrective
actions.

Derivative financial Instruments:

Credit risk arising from derivative financial instruments is, at any time, limited to those with positive fair values, as recorded on the balance sheet. With gross—setiled derivatives,
the Company is also exposed to a settlement risk. being the risk that the Company honours its obligation, but the counterparty fails 1o deliver the counter value,

Impairment Assesment:
The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss, The expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which akes

into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

The expected credit loss is a product of exposure at default, probability of default and loss given default. The Company has devised an internal model w evaluate the probability
of default and loss given default based on the parameters set out in Ind AS. Accordingly. the loans are classified into various stages as follows:

Internal rating grade Internal grading description  Stages
Performing

High grade t dpd to 30 dpd Stage |
Standard grade 31 to 90 dpd Stage 11
Non-performing

Individually impaired 90+ dpd Stage 111

Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive
(i.c.. all cash shortfalls). discounted at the orginal EIR. Expected Credit Loss (ECL) computation is not driven by any single methodology. however methodology and approach
used must reflect the following:

1) An unbiased and probability weighted amount that evaluates a range of possible oulcomes
2} Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost and effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
3) Time value of money

While the time value of money element is currently being factored into ECL measurement while discounting cash flows by the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). the objective of
developing a macroeconomic model using exogenous macroeconomic variables (MEVs) is to address the first two requirements. This has been achieved by using the model
output 1o adjust the PD risk component in order to make it forward looking and probability-weighted.

Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)

The Company considers a financial instrument defaulted. classified as Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations, in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due.
Classification of assets form stage | w stage 2 has been carried out based on SICR criterion. Accounts which are more than 30 days past due have been identified as accounts
where significant increase in credit risk has been observed, These accounts have been classified as Stage 2 assets. When such events occur. the Company carefully considers
whether the event should result in treating the customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL caleulations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate.

Probability_ of Default

Probability of default (PD) is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon, Since the Company has nil historical default in its portfolio, PD calculation is a
challenge basis default history of the company, Hence stage 1 PD has been considered from a Discussion Paper on “Introduction of Dynamic Loan Loss Provisioning Framework
for Banks in India™ by RBI in Mar 2012,

Loss ri‘.gn D ﬁllk (1 ggl

The LGD represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of default, taking into account, among other attributes. the mitigating effect of collateral value at the time it is
expected to be realised and the time value of money. Since the Company is into the business of lending against securities, haircut as per company's risk policy is applied on the
value of the colleteral, based on basel hairut values for corporate securities, The exposure amount that is over and above the collateral (with haircut) is considered as the ~Loss
Exposure”,

LGD% = Loss exposure/EAD

Exposure at Default (EAD)

The amount which the borrower will owe to the financial institution at the time of default 15 defined as Exposure at Default (EAD). While the drawn credit line reflects the explicit
exposure for the Company. there might be variable exposure that may change the EAD. For the current ECL computation exercise. the sum of all owtstanding amounts has been
taken as the total exposure,
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41.

A.

Fair Value measurement
Valuation principles

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using a valuation technique. In order to show how fair values have been derived. financial instruments are classified
based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques:

Level 1 — valuation technique using quoted market price: financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets
that company can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 — valuation technique using observable inputs:Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived
from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 — valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to
the measurement as whole.

Refer note 2.11 for more details on fair value hierarchy.

Valuation goverance framework

The Company's fair value methodology and the governance over its models includes a number of controls and other procedures to ensure
appropriate safeguards are in place to ensure its quality and adequacy. All new product initiatives (including their valuation methodologies)
are subject to approvals by various functions of the Company including the risk and finance functions.

Where fair values are determined by reference to externally quoted prices or observable pricing inputs to models, independent price
determination or validation is used. For inactive markets, Company sources alternative market information, with greater weight given to
information that is considered to be more relevant and reliable.

The responsibility of ongoing measurement resides with the business and product line divisions. However finance department is also
responsible for establishing procedures governing valuation and ensuring fair values are in compliance with accounting standards.

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy

As at March 31,2025 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Derivative financial instruments

Embedded derivatives in market-linked debentures - - 897.98 897.98

Exchange traded derivatives (Including Futures open position) 982.27 287.22 - 1,269.49
Total derivative financial instruments - A 982.27 287.22 897.98 2,167.47
Financial Assets held for trading

Government Securities 1.184.03 - - 1.184.03

Other debt securities 1.869.99 1.501.42 - 3.371.41

Equity Shares - 0.04 - 0.04

Exchange traded fund units, Mutual fund 3.547.31 - - 3.547.31

AIF / InvIT Fund 21249 17.43 - 229.92
Total Financial assets held for trading - B 6,813.82 1,518.89 - 8.332.71
Total Financial assets measured at fair value (A+B) 7.796.09 1.806.11 897.98 10.500.18
Liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Derivative financial instruments

Embedded derivatives in market-linked debentures - - 208.90 208.90

Exchange traded derivatives (Including Futures open position) 418.13 8.21 B 426.34
Total derivative financial instruments 418.13 8.21 208.90 635.24
Total Financial liabilities measured at fair value 418.13 8.21
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41.

Fair Value measurement (Continued)

As at March 31, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Derivative financial instruments

Embedded derivatives in market-linked debentures - - 829.58 829.58

Exchange traded derivatives (Including Futures open position) 134.18 1.290.92 - 1.425.10
Total derivative financial instruments - A 134.18 1,290.92 829.58 2,254.68
Financial Assets held for trading

Government Securities 2.184.89 - . 2.184.89

Other debt securities 1.202.13 762.05 - 1.964.18

Equity Shares 650.39 2.90 - 653.29

Exchange traded fund units, Mutual fund 1,304.94 - - 1,304.94

AIF / InvIT Fund - 6.56 - 6.56
Total Financial assets held for trading - B 5.342.35 771.51 - 6,113.86
Total Financial assets measured at fair value (A+B) 5.476.53 2.062.43 829.58 8.368.54
Liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Derivative financial instruments

Embedded derivatives in market-linked debentures - - 776.57 776.57

Exchange traded derivatives (Including Futures open position) 79.87 22497 - 304.84
Total derivative financial instruments 79.87 22497 776.57 1.081.41
Total Financial liabilities measured at fair value 79.87 224.97 776.57 1.081.41

Valuation techniques:

Government securities:

Government securities are financial instruments issued by sovereign governments and include long term bonds and short-term Treasury bills
with fixed or floating rate interest payments, These instruments are generally highly liquid and traded in active markets resulting in a Level 1
classification.

Debt securities:

Whilst most of these instruments are standard fixed rate securities, Fair value of these instruments is derived based on the indicative quotes
of price and vields prevailing in the market as at the reporting date. The Company has used quoted price of national stock exchange wherever
bonds are traded actively. In cases where debt securities are not activity traded, the Company has used CRISIL Corporate Bond Valuer model
for measuring fair value.

Equity instruments, units of mutual fund and Exchange traded fund units:

The majority of equity instruments are actively traded on stock exchanges with readily available active prices on a regular basis. Such
instruments are classified as Level 1. Units held in funds are measured based on their published net asset value (NAV), taking into account
redemption and/or other restrictions. Such instruments are also classified as Level 1. Equity instruments in non-listed entities are initially
recognised at transaction price and re-measured at each reporting date at valuation provided by external valuer at instrument level. Unlisted
equity securities are classified at Level 2.

Exchange traded derivatives:

Exchange traded derivatives includes index/stock options, index/stock futures and the company values these derivatives using exchange-
traded prices and categorizes them as level 1 instruments, with the exception of derivatives which are consistently valued internally using

observable inputs that are derived from observable market data and form the basis for the valuation and the same are being classified as
Level 2.
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41. Fair Value measurement (Continued)

Embedded derivative:
An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract with the effect that some of
the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative.

The Company uses valuation models which calculate the present value of expected future cash flows. based upon "no arbitrage” principles.
Inputs to valuation models are determined from observable market (Indices) data wherever possible. including prices available from
exchanges, dealers, brokers. company classify these embedded derivative as level 3 instruments.

E. There have been no transfers between levels during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

F. The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening balances and the closing balances for fair value measurements in Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy

Embedded options

As at March 31, 2025 Assets Liabilities Net balance
At April 1, 2024 829.58 776.57 53.01
Issuances 318.01 - 318.01
Settlements (5.97) (579.03) 573.06
Change in Value of the Options (243.64) 11.36 (255.00)
As at March 31, 2025 897.98 208.90 689.08

Embedded options

As at March 31, 2024 Assets Liabilities Net balance
At April 1, 2023 1.568.07 289.08 1,278.99
Issuances 1,120.37 164.7% 955.59
Settlements (4.66) (70.05) 65.39
Change in Value of the Options (1.854.20) 392.76 (2,246.96)

As at March 31, 2024 829.58 776.57 53.01
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Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

41.
H.

Fair Value measurement (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value:
With respect to financial instruments not measured at fair value, their carrying amounts approximates fair value.

Valuation Methodologies of Financial Instruments not measured at fair value

Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded
and measured at fair value in the Company's financial statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only. The
below methodologies and assumptions relate only to the instruments in the above tables and. as such, may differ from the technigues and
assumptions explained in notes.

Short Term Financial Assets and Liabilities

Carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade
payables. Borrowings (other than debt securities) approximate the fair value because of their short-term nature. Difference between
carrying amounts and fair values of other financials assets and other financial liabilities is not significant in each of the years presented.

Financial assets & liabilities at amortised cost

The fair values of financial assets & liabilities measured at amortised cost are estimated using a discounted cash flow model hased on
contractual cash flows using actual or estimated vields and discounting by vields incorporating the counterparties” credit risk.

Issued debt securities

The fair value of issued debt is estimated by a discounted cash flow model.




Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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42,

42.D.1

Risk Management (continued)
Credit Risk (continued)

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. Guidelines are in place covering
the acceptability and valuation of each type of collateral. The main types of collateral obtained are pledge over martetable securities such as
equity shares, mutual fund units, bonds, AIF units etc. Management monitors the market value of collateral and will request additional

collateral in accordance with the underlying agreement.

The tables below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset along with details on collaterals held against

exposure.

Maximum exposure to credit risk

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Principal type of collateral

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3.154.75 1.374.43
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 194.04 2221
Derivative financial instruments 2.085.73 2.179.88
Securities held for trading 8.332.71 6,113.86

Trade receivables 761.72 80.71
Other receivables 0.48 0.39
Loans

Corporate credit - 5.39
Retail Credit 31.,708.68 30,722.78
Investments 976.96 084,02
Other financial assets 105.90 1,015.84

Total 47,320.97 42,500.41

The Company invest in highly liquid
Central/State Government securities, high
rated Corporate Bonds. Equity Shares &
marketable securities.

These are receivables mainly from
Clearing houses / Stock exchanges and
receivable towards Fees income.

Receivable from related party

Receivable from related party

Loan prolvided against collateral of Equity
shares, mutual fund units, Bonds, AIF
units.

The Company invests in highly liquid
Central/State Government securities
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42,
42.D.2

Risk Management (contined)
Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with finaneial lisbilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asser. Liquidiny nsh

arises because of the possibility that the Company might be unable 1o meer its payment ohligations when they fall due az a result of mismaiches in the timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress
circumstances.

The company ensures sufficient Liquidity Cushion is maintained in the form of Cash and cash equivalents and [nvestments in liquid securities. These assets carmy minimal credit risk and can be liquidated inavery
short period of time. This takes care of i di bligations while inuing 1o honour our commitments as & going concern. The Company continues 1o focus on developing a diversified funding model 1o
achieve an optimum cost of funds while balancing liquidiy.

Analvsis of financial assets and liabilities by maturities

The table below summarises the matwrity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company s financial assers and ligbilities as at March 31,2025 and March 11,2024, All derivatives used for hedging and
natural hedges are shown by maturity, based on thewr | unde pay bligari Giross settled. ding dertvatives are shown separately. by contraciual mawrity ar the foot of the note

Repayments which are subject to notice are treated as if notice were to be given immediately. However, the Company expects that many customers will not request repayment on the earliest date it could be
required to pay and the tahle does not reflect the expected cash flows indicated by its deposit retention history.

As at March 31, 2025 - Analysis of contractual maturities of financial assets and liabil

On Demand LUpte 3 Months 3 to & Months i Months to | vear 1 vear to 3 vears Mure than 3 years Taotal
Financial Assets
(a} Cash and cash equivalents 242 TR 1a1.47 - > - 315475
(b1 Bank halances other than cash and cash - .01 18201 .02 - - 194.04
equivalents
(¢} Derivative financial instruments - L IRETS 1134 9,12 TH1 Y6 12568 208573
1} Securities hekd for trading - ®A32.71 - - - . 33271
(e} Receivahles
(1) Trade receivables - Thl 1Y (LR 147 - - T61.72
{ii} Other receivables - (L% - - - - .48
(T} Loans - T 139 B6ST 46 1756083 - . 31L.T08.08
() Investments - 9Tk R - - - 976.96
(b Other financial assets - 34,80 - [N} - LR 105.90
Total undiscounted financial assets 2,902 78 ThER. 30 781299 17,872 88 762.96 191.58 ?7.33&-'&
Financial Liabilities
ta) Derivative financial instruments - 244935 71 M43 12y - 457.29
(b} Trade payables - 13020 - - - - 130.20
(¢} Deht securities . 5,004.51 5A96 48 3.268.27 2296094 1,507.72 36,143.97
(d} Borrowings (other than debt securities ) - 612 5629 11676 402,29 - 113546
(e} Other financial liabilities - RRMET] .21 - 3 54305
Total undiscounted financiil liabi - 5,982.01 _1.-1_84.4!' 3.4_5'.",I 7 23.973.87 1 E‘.".T" 3B 400,97
1,092.78 11,706.29 4,323.30 14.415.38 (23,210.59) (1.316.14) £,911.00
As at March 31, 2024 - Analysis of contractual maturities of financial assets and liabilities
On Demand 1Upte 3 Months 3 to b Months 6 Months to | vear 1 vear 1o 3 vears More than 3 years Total
Financial Assets
ta) Cash and cash equivalents 134245 1148 - - 1.37
(b Bank halances other than cash and - - .21 200
cash equivalents
(e} Derivative financial instruments - 1,322 84 022 ERBL ] 562,72 260 TY 217988
(di Securities held for trading - 611086 - - - - 6.111.86
(e} Receivahles - - : i
(1) Trade receivables - KILTI - - - - 80.71
(i) Oither receivahles - .34 - - . 0.39
ft Loans - T.129.14 30,728.17
(] Investments - 449513 . - - - 984.92
() Other financial assets - 45 1K - k1K - BY.5K 101584
Total undiscounted financial assets 1,342,405 16 0 1K.68 5.533.56 18,612.13 56272 330.37 42,500.41
s EiNEL s ik S L
Financial Liabilities
(i} Derivative financial instruments - 24260 552,44 LA | 157,44 - 107319
(b1 Trade pavables - 14513 - - - - 14513
(et Deht securities - 302849 S 0448 341335 16,798.27 287929 31,224.38
11 Borrowings (other than debt securities) - (LR - - - - Ol 38
te} Cither financial liabilines - LRI - - - - 890.85
Total wndiscounted Ginancial liabilities = 4,967.45 5,657.42 3,494.06 16,995.71 2.879.29 33,983.93
Total net financial assets | (liabilities) 1,342.95 11,151.24 {123.87) 15, 118.08 (16,432.99) (2,548.92) B.506.48

In the above table. cash fiows have been considered basis contractual maturitics of respective assets and labilities. The Surplus funds so available on repavinents of aforementioned loans granted. shall be used w
create further loan book,
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42, Risk Management (continued)
42.D.2 Liquidity risk (continued)

Financial assets available to support future funding

Following table sets out the availability of Company's financial assets to support funding

As at March 31, 2025

a) Cash and cash equivalent including

bank balance

Bank balances other than cash and

cash equivalents

¢) Derivative financial instruments

d) Securities held for trading

e} Trade receivables

) Other receivables

g) Loans

h) Investments

i) Other financial assets

i) Property, Plant and Equipment
Total assets

b

As at March 31, 2024

Cash and cash equivalent including
bank balance

Bank balances other than cash and
cash eguivalents

¢) Derivative financial instruments
d) Securities held for rading

e) Trade receivables

) Other receivables

g) Loans

h} Investments

i) Other financial assets

1) Property, Plant and Equipment
Total assets

=

b

Notes :

Encumbered

Unencumbered

Contractually/ legally

Awvailable as

Total carrying amount

Pledge as collateral . thers?
. A estricted assets ' collateral ~ *"¢"*

- - 3.154.75 - 31.154.75

194,04 - - - 194.04

- - - 2.085.73 2.085.73

1.444 .50 2.391.98 449623 - 8.332.71

- - - 761.72 761.72

- - - 0.48 0.48

- 31.708.68 - - 31.708.68

- = 976.96 - 976.96

- - - 105.90 105.90

- 1.10 - 1.50 2.60

1.638.54 34.101.76 8.627.94 2.95533 47.323.57

Encumbered Unencumbered

Contractually/ legally

Available as

Total carrying amount

Pled 1 !
edge as collateral reitsioted assets’ collateral others
- - 1.374.43 - 1.374.43
22.21 - - - 22.21
- - - 2.179.88 2.179.88
2.390.41 - 3.723.45 - 6,113.86
- - - 80.71 80.71
- - - 0.39 0.39
- 25,329.81 5.398.36 - 30,728.17
- - 984.92 - 984.92
- - - 1.015.84 1.015.84
- 1.16 - 1.35 2.51
2.412.62 _§.330‘9'.|" 11.481.16  3,278.17 42._502.92

1 Represents assets which are not pledged and the company believes it is restricted from using to secure funding for legal or other reason.

3

normal course of business.

2 Represents assets which are not restricted for use as collateral, but that the company would not consider readily available to secure funding in the
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42. Risk Management (conrinued)
42.D.3 Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such
as interest rates, equity prices and Index movements. The company classifies exposures to market risk into either trading or non—trading
portfolios and manages each of those portfolios separately. All the positions are managed and monitored using sensitivity analysis.

Total market risk exposure

As at March 31, 2028

Particulars Carrying Traded Risk Non traded risk Primary risk sensitivity
Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3.154.75 - 3.154.75  Interest rate risk

Bank balances other than cash and cash 194.04 - 194,04  Interest rate risk

equivalents

Derivative financial instruments 2,085.73 2.085.73 - Price risk . Interest rate risk
Securities held for trading 8.332.71 8.332.71 - Price risk ., Interest rate risk
Trade receivables 761.72 - T61.72  Interest rate risk (Bond receivable)
Other receivables 0.48 - 0.48

Loans 31,708.68 - 31,708.68 Interest rate risk

Investments 976.96 976.96 - Price risk , Interest rate risk
Other financial assets 105.90 - 105.90

Total Financial Assets 47.320.97 11,395.40 35,925.57

Financial Liabilities

Derivative financial instruments 457.29 457.29 - Price risk , Interest rate risk
Trade payables 130.20 - 130.20
Debt securities 36.143.97 - 36,143.97 Interest rate risk
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 1,135.46 - 1,135.46  Interest rate risk
Other financial liabilities 543.05 - 543.05
Total Financial Liabilities 38.409.97 457.29 37,952.68

As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Carrying Traded Risk  Non traded risk Primary risk sensitivity
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1.374.43 - 1.374.43  Interest rate risk
Bank balances other than cash and cash 22.2] - 22.21  Interest rate risk
equivalents
Derivative financial instruments 2.179.88 2.179.88 - Price risk , Interest rate risk
Securities held for trading 6.113.86 6.113.86 - Price risk . Interest rate risk
Trade receivables 80.71 - 80.71  Interest rate risk (Bond receivable)
Other receivables 0.39 - 0.39
Loans 30,728.17 - 30,728.17  Interest rate risk
Investments 984.92 984.92 - Price risk ., Interest rate risk
Other financial assets 1.015.84 - 1.015.84
Total Financial Assets 42,500.41 9,278.06 33,221.75
Financial Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments 1,073.19 1,073.19 - Price risk , Interest rate risk
Trade payables 145.13 - 145.13  Interest rate risk (Bond payable)
Debt securities 31,224.38 - 31,224.38  Interest rate risk
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 660.38 - 660.38  Interest rate risk
Other financial liabilities 890.85 - 890.85

Total Financial Liabilities 33.993.93 1.073.19 32.920.74
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42. Risk Management (Continued)

42.E.1 Interest Rate Risk
The principal risk to which non-trading portfolios are exposed is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the future cash flows or fair values of financial instruments
because of a change in market interest rates. Interest rate risk is managed principally through monitoring interest rate gaps and by having pre-approved limits for
repricing bands.
ALCO is the monitoring body for compliance with these limits. ALCO reviews the interest rate pap statement and the mix of floating and fixed rate assets and
linhilities. Balance Sheet Management Unit is in-charge for day to day management of interest rate risk.
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will atfect future cash flows or the fair values of financial instruments. The Board has
established limits on the non—trading interest rate paps for stipulated years, The Company's policy is to monitor positions on a daily basis and hedging strategies are
used to ensure positions are maintained within the established limits,
The following table demonstrates on linear basis the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all other variables being constant) of the Company g
statement of profit and loss and equity. The sensitivity of the statement of profit and loss is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the profit or loss for a
vear. hased on the floating rate non-trading financial assets and financial habilities held at March 31.2025 and March 31.2024.

42.E.2  Interest rate sensitivity

As at March 31, 2025

Increase in basis  Sensitivity of Sensitivity of  Decrease in basis  Sensitivity of Sensitivity of
puints Profit (Loss) Equity points Profit /(Loss) Equity
Floating rate loans 25 - - 25 - -
Government Securities 25 (2.96) - 25 296 -
Corporate debt securitics 25 (8.43) - 25 543 -
Mutual funds & Exchange Traded fund 25 (8.87) - 25 8.87 -
As at March 31, 2024
Increase in basis  Sensitivity of Senmsitivity of  Decrease in basis  Sensitivity of Sensitivity of
points Profit /{loss) Equity points Profit /(Loss) Equity
Floating rate loans 25 0.01 - 25 (0.01) -
Government Securities 25 (5.46) - 25 5.46 -
Corporate debt securities 25 (4.91) - 25 4.91 -
Mutual funds & Exchange Traded fund 25 (3.20) - 25 3.26 -

41.E.3  Price Risk
The Company’s exposure to sccurities price risk arises from investments held in various securities classified in the balance sheet at fair value through profit or loss. To
manage its price risk arising from such investments, the Company diversifies its portfolio.
Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the level of individual investment in prices of
financial instruments.

As at March 31, 2025

Increase in basis  Sensitivity of Sensitivity of  Decrease in basis  Sensitivity of Sensitivity of
points Profit /(Loss) Equity points Profit/ (Loss) Equity
Derivative instruments
Embedded derivative 25 1.7 - 25 (1.72) =
Exchange traded denivatives a5 211 - 25 (2.11) -
Equity Instrument 25 .00 - 25 (0.00) -
Mutual funds & Exchange Traded fund 25 B.87 = 23 (8.87) -
AIF  InvIT Fund 25 (.57 - 25 (0.57) -
As at March 31, 2024
Increase in basis  Sensitivity of Sensitivity of  Decrease in basis  Sensitivity of Sensitivity of
points Profit /(Loss) Equity vints Profit/ (Loss) Equity
Derivative instruments
Embedded derivative 25 0.13 - 25 (0.13) -
Exchange traded derivatives 25 280 - 25 (2.80) -
Equity Instrument 25 1.63 - 25 (1.63) -
Mutual funds & Exchange Traded fund 25 3126 - 25 (3.26) -
AIF - InvIT Fund 25 0.03 - 25 (0.03) -

42.E.4 Prepayvment Risk
Prepavment risk is the rigk that the Company will incur a financial loss because its counterparties request repayment earlier or later than expected. such as fixed rate
borrowings in the falling interest rate scenario.
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43.

43.01

43.02

Regulatory disclosures - RBI - . o
The following additional information is disclosed in the terms of Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company —
Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 issued vide Master Direction DoR.FIN.REC No. 045/03.10.119/2023-24 dated October 19, 2023 as

amended.

Investments (Refer Note 6 and 9)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1) Value of Investments (including securities held for trading) (Refer Note 6 &
Note 9)

i) Gross Value of Investiments
a) In India 9.300.67 7,102,094

b) Outside India - -

i) Provisions for Depreciation

a) In India - 4.16

b) Outside India - iy
iti) Net Value of Investments

a) In India 9.309.67 7.098.78

b) Ouside India

2) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments.

i) Opening balance 416 -
ii) Add : Provisions made during the vear - 4.16

i) Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the vear (4.16) -
iv) Closing balance ~

Derivatives
A) Forward Rate Agr t / Interest Rate Swap
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
i) The notional principal of swap agreements entered during the year 2,750.00

ia) The notional principal of swap agreements outstanding (net liabilitv) - -

i) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfill theiwr - -
obligations under the agreements

ii1) Collateral required by the NBFC upon entering into swaps # #

V) Conecentration of credit risk arising from the swaps”

v) The fair value of the swap book = &

# indicates "o of concentration of credit risk arising from swaps with bank.

B) Exch Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivatives

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded [R derivatives undertaken - -

during the vear
ii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding - -

111} Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and - -
not "highly effective”
iv) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not - -

"highly effective”

C) Qualitative disclosure for Derivatives

The Company undertakes transactions in derivative products in the role of a user with counter parties. The Company deals in the derivatives for
balance sheet management i.e. for hedging fixed rate, floating rate and for hedging the variable interest in case of benchmark linked debentures. All
derivatives are marked to market on reporting dates and the resulting gain/loss is recorded in the statement of profit and loss.

Dealing in derivatives is carried out by specified groups of the treasury department of the Company based on the purpose of the transaction.
Derivative transactions are entered into by the treasury front office. Mid office team conducts an independent check of the transactions entered into
by the front office and also undertakes activities such as confirmation, settlement, risk monitoring and reporting.

The Company has a credit and market risk department that assesses counterparty risk and marketl nisk limits, within the risk architecture and
processes of the Company. The Company has in place a policy which covers various aspects that apply to the functioning of the derivative business.
Limits are monitored on a daily basis by the mid-office.
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43.03

43.04

Regulatory disclosures - RBI (Continued)

D) Quantitative Disclosures

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

S.no. Particulars Currency Interest Rate Currency Interest Rate
Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives
i) Derivatives {Notional Principal Amount)
For hedging - - = =
i) Marked to Market Positions (Notional
Principal Amount)
a) Assels (1) " - - ~
b) Liability (-) - - - -
i) Credit Exposure - - - -
iv)  Unhedged Exposures - - 5 a
Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
I CRAR (*o) 20.87% 21.94%
ii. CRAR - Tier I Capital ("a) 20.57% 21.63%
iii.  CRAR -Tier Il Capital ("o) (1.30% 0.31%

Details of Single Borrower Limit and Borrower Group Limit exceeded by the Company:

During the vear ended March 31,2025 and March 31, 2024 the Company credit exposure 1o single borrowers and group borrowers were within the
limits preseribed by RBI .

Exposure to real estate sector, both direct and indirect;

Direct exposure

Residential Mortgages

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be
occupied by the borrower or that is rented. Exposure would also include non-
fund based (NFB) limits.

Commercial Real Estate

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings,
retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, multi-family residential
buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space.
hotels. land acquisition, development and construction, ete.). Exposure would
also include non-fund based (NFB) limits;

Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised
exposures

Residential

Commercial Real Estate

Indirect exposure

Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB)
and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)

Total Exposure

As at
March 31. 2025

As at
March 31. 2024

81.79

81.79
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Regulatory disclosures - RBI (Continued)

Exposure to Capital Market(Gross)

(1)

(i)

(ii1)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii}
(wiii)

(ix}
(%)

direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds. convertible debentures
and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not
exclusively invested in corporate debt:
advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean
basis to individuals for investment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs),
convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual
funds;
advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as
primary security;
advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security
of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity
oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares /
convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual
funds 'does not fully cover the advances;
secured and unsecured advances o stockbrokers and guarantees issued on
behalf of stockbrokers and market makers;

loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds /
debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter's
contribution to the eguity of new companies in anticipation of raising
resources;
bridge loans 1o companies against expected equity flows / issues:
Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of primary
issue of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of
equity oriented mutual funds
Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading
All exposures to Alternative Investment Funds:
(i) Category |
(i) Category 1l
(1) Category 111

Total exposure to capital market

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
713125 3,922.41
31,838.80 30,846.42

. 5.41

14.87 6.56

257 416

38,987.48 34.784.96
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Regulatory disclosures - RBI (continued)

Asset Liability Management

Maturity pattern of certain assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2025

Particulars

i) Movement of NPAs (Gross)

a) Opening Balance

b) Additions during the yvear
¢) Reductions during the year
d) Closing balance

ii) Movement of Net NPAs

a) Opening Balance

b) Additions during the year
¢) Reductions during the year
d) Closing balance

iii) Movement of Provisions for NPAs

(Excluding provision on Standard assets)

a) Opening Balance

b) Additions during the vear
¢) Reductions during the vear
d) Closing balance

March 31, 2025

Liabilities Assets
Brfionury Deposit Borrowings Advances .\t‘clll'ltllts.held gl Investments
trading
1 to 7 davs - 109.24 1,130.96 8,315.28 -
8o 14 davs - 1,479.64 1,163.38 - -
15 day to 30/31 days - 187.47 1,076,23 - -
Over one month to 2 months - 215514 1.711.43 - -
Over 2 months to 3 months - 1,176.28 2,092.40 17.43 -
Over 3 months to 6 months - 3,452.76 6,053,453 - 976.96
Over & months to | year - 3.386.04 17.860.83 - -
Over 1 year to 3 years - 23.:825.14 - - -
Over 3 years to 5 vears - 1,507.72 - - -
Ower 5 vears - - - - -
Total g 37.279.43 31,708.68 8,332.71 976.96
Maturity pattern of certain assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2024
Liabilities Assets
Particulars Deposit Borrowings Advances Securltlus‘held for Investments
trading
1 to 7 days - 666,49 1,794.87 6,111.00 -
8 to 14 days - - 859.21 - -
15 day to 30/31 davs - 883.39 £39.70 -
Orver one month to 2 months - 181.06 1,579.62 - 495,13
Over 2 months to 3 months 5 1,857.93 2.055.66 2.86 -
Over 3 months to 6 months - 5,104,958 5.023.34 - 480.79
Over 6 months to 1 year - 3.413.35 18,575.68 - -
Over 1 vear to 3 vears = 16,708.27 - - -
Owver 3 vears to 5 vears - 2,357.00 - - -
Over 5 vears - 522.29 - - -
Total - 31,884.76 30,728.17 6.113.86 984.92
Movements in Non Performing Advances:
The following table sets forth, for the vears indicated, the details of movement of gross non-performing assets (NPAs),
Net NPAs and provisions:
As at As at

March 31, 2024
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Regulatory disclosures - RBI (continued)

Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in Statement of Profit and Loss:

As at As at
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024

Particulars
(i} Provisions for depreciation on investment (4.16) 4.16
(ii) Provision towards NPA - .
(i) Provision made towards income tax (net of deferred tax) 315.23 286.07
(iv)  Provision for stage | / stage 2 assets 6.46 33.27
(v)  Other Provision and Contingencies (Provision for doubtful debts) 3.99 2.87
Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs*

As at As at

A) Concentration of Advances

Total advances to twenty largest borrowers
Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances

B) Concentration of Exposures

Total exposures to twenty largest borrowers | customers
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers | customers to total exposures

C) Concentration of NPAs
Total exposures to top four NPAs

D) Sector-wise NPAs

Sectors

Agriculture & allied activities
MSME

Corporate borrowers

Services

Unsecured personal loans
Auto loans

Other personal loans

S RV S U -

March 31, 2025

12.374.71
38.87%

12,374.71
38.87%

March 31, 2024

11.473.63
37.19%

11.473.63
37.19%

Percentage of NPAs to
Total Advances in that sector

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

*Since company is Non-Deposit taking NBFC. Hence Concentration of Deposits disclosure is not applicable.
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Regulatory disclosures - RBI (continued)

Customer Complaints

1) Summary information on complaints received by the NBFCs from customers and from the Offices of Ombudsman:

Sr.No. Particulars FY2024-25 FY2023-24
Complaints received by the NBFC from its customers:
1 Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year 0 0
2 Number of complaints received during the vear 9 0
3 Number of complaints disposed during the year 9 0
3.1 Of which. number of complaints rejected by the NBFC 0 0
4 Number of complaints pending at the end of the year 0 1]
Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman
5 Number of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman 0 3
5.1.  Of 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by Office of Ombudsman 0 2
52 Of 5, number of complaints resolved through conciliation/mediation’advisories issued by
Office of Ombudsman 0 1
5.3 Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Office of Ombudsman against
the NBFC 0 0
O* Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time (other than those appealed) 0 0

Note: Maintainable complaints refer to complaints on the grounds specifically mentioned in Integrated Ombudsman Scheme. 2021 (Previously
The Ombudsman Scheme for Non-Banking Financial Companies, 2018) and covered within the ambit of the Scheme.

* It shall only be applicable to NBFCS which are included under The Reserve Bank - Integrated Ombudsman Scheme, 2021

1) Top five grounds of complaints received by the NBFCs from customers

FY 2024-25

Grounds of Number of Number of % increase/ decrease in the Number of Of 5, number of

complaints, (i.e. complaints | complaints received | number of complaints received complaints complaints
complaints relating | pending at the during the vear over the FY 23-24 pending at the | pending beyond
to) beginning of end of the year 30 days
the FY24-25
1 2 3 4 5 6

Difficulty in - 1.00 100% - -
Operating Account
Processing Fees and - 4.00 100% E -
other Charges
Others - 4.00 300% - d
Total - 9.00 200% - -
FY 2023-24

Grounds of Number of Number of % increase/ decrease in the Number of Of 5, number of

complaints, (i.e. complaints | complaints received | number of complaints received complaints complaints
complaints relating | pending at the | during the year over the FY 22-23 pending at the | pending beyond
to) beginning of end of the year 30 days
the FY23-24
1 2 3 4 5 6

Difficulty in - - -100% - -
Operating Account
Processing Fees and - 2.00 -50% - -
other Charges
Others - 1.00 100% - -
Total - 3.00 -50% - -

Overseas Assets (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad)-Nil

The Company has not restructured any loans and advances during the vear ended March 31. 2025 and March 31, 2024
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Regulatory disclosures - RBI (continued)
As required in Annexure VI of paragraph 31 of ( Schedule 1o the balance sheet) of Chapter IV of Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking
Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 issued vide Master Direction DoR.FIN.REC.No. 045/03.10.119/2023-24 dated October

19, 2023 as amended.

Liabilities side :

As at March 31, 20258 As at March 31, 2024
Amount Amount Amount Amount
Qutstanding Overdue Qutstanding Overdue

(1} Loans and Advances availed by the NBFCs
inclusive of interest acerued thereon but not
paid:

(a) Debentures
{other than falling within the meaning of public
deposits*)
1) Secured 32,317.68 - 25,320.81 -
ii) Unsecured - - = =
(b) Deferred Credits - = - &
(c) Term Loans 1.135.46 - & &
(d) Inter-Corporate Loans and Borrowing - - - "
(e) Commercial Paper 3,826.29 - 5,894.57 i

(1) Other Loans:
Borrowings (Repa) - - 660.38 #
Preference Share Capital - - = =

(* Please see Note | below)

Assets side :

Amount Outstanding (Gross)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(2) Break-up of Gross Loans and Advances including bills receivables
|other than those included in (4) below]:
(a) Secured 31,779.34 20.982.04
(b) Unsecured 509.46 86576

(3) Break-up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and hypothecation loans counting towards
AFC activities
(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors :
(a) Financial Lease = =
{b) Operating Lease & _

{ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
(a) Assets on Hire . _
{b) Repossessed Assets = &

(iii) Hypothecation loans counting towards EL / HP activities ;
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed - a

(b} Loans other than (a} above - -

(4) Break-up of Investments:

Current

1. Quoted :

(i) Shares : (a) Equity & 650.39
(b) Preference - -

(ii) Debentures and Bonds 1,848.46 232270

(1ii) Units of Mutual Funds (Including Exchange traded fund) - 28.97

(1iv) Government Securities 2.160.98 3,169.81

(v} Others (Including InvIT fund) 212.49 -
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43, Regulatory disclosures - RBI (continued)

43.14  As required in Annexure VIl of paragraph 31 of ( Schedule to the balance sheet) of Chapter IV of Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking
Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 issued vide Master Direction DoR.FIN.REC No. 045/03.10.119/2023-24 dated October

19, 2023 as amended. (Continued)

(4) Break-up of Investments (Continued)

2. Ungquoted :
(1) Shares :(a) Equity
(b) Preference
(it} Debentures and Bonds
(iii} Units of Mutual Funds
(iv) Government Securitics
{v) Others (Including Alternate investment fund)

Long Term investments :
1. Quoted :
(1) Shares :(a) Equity

{b) Preference
(1i) Debentures and Bonds
(1i1) Units of Mutual Funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others

2. Unquoted :
(i) Shares :(a) Equity
(b) Preference
(it} Debentures and Bonds
(i1} Units of Mutual Funds
{iv) Government Securities
(v) Others
(a) Warrants
(b) Units of Fund
(¢) Investment in Security Receipts
(d) Share Application Money

Amount Qutstanding (Gross)
As at
March 31. 2025

0.04

Lad
hon
o,
-_—

e

]
= n
L

As at

March 31. 2024

2.90

T41.48
1,275.96

10,72

As at March 31, 2025

(5) Borrower group-wise classification of all assets financed as in (2) and (3) above:

Category

1. Related Parties™*
(4) Subsidiaries
(b) Other related parties

2. Other than related parties

Secured

3840

31.611.06

Amount (net of provisions)
Unsecured

39.22

Total

38.40

31.670.28

As at March 31. 2024

Category

I. Related Parties**
(a) Subsidiaries
(b) Other related parties

2. Other than related parties

Secured

4.61

29,857.25

Amount (net of provisions)
Unsecured

5.39

860,92

Total

10.00

30,718.17

(6) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted)

Category

1. Related parties**
(a) Subsidiaries
(b) Companies in the same group
(¢} Other relaled parties

2. Other than related parties

9.219.33

Total 9.309.67

Market value / Break-up or
fair value or NAV

31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024

70.52

7,028.26

7.098.78

Book value (net of provisions)

March 31, 2025

8G.84

9,219.83

9.309.67

March 31, 2024

70.52

7,028.26

TA98.78

** As per Ind AS-24 Related Party Disclosures (Refer Note 39)
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43. Regulatory disclosures - RBI (continued)

43.14  As required in Annexure VIIT of paragraph 31 of ( Schedule to the balance sheet) of Chapter IV of Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking
Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 issued vide Master Direction DoR.FIN.REC.No. 045/03.10.119/2023-24 dated October

19, 2023 as amended.{Continued)

(7) Other information

Particulars

(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related Party
(b) Other than Related Parties

(ii) Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related Party
{b) Other than Related Parties

(i1i) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debis

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Notes:

1 As defined in paragraph 2(1)(xii} of the Non-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits (Reserve Bank) Directions, ] 998
2 Market value/Breakup Value or Fair Value or NAY is taken as same as book value in case of unquoted shares in absence of market vale / breakup

value or fair value or NAV.

43.15  Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year ended March 31, 2025

(i) Long Term Instruments
Rating
Amount
(ii) Short Term Instruments
Rating
Amount
(iii) Market linked debentures
a. Short Term
Rating
Amount
b. Long Term
Rating
Amount

CRISIL AA-/Stable
10,004.2

Al+
25,500
PPMLD Al+

1,000

PPMLD AA- /Stable
18,726

AA-; Stable
12,000

Al
20,000
PP-MLD Al+

1,000

FP-MLD AA-; Stable
2.000

Instrument category CRISIL CARE Brickworks
(i) Long Term Instruments
Rating CRISIL AA-/Stable AA-; Stable -
Amount 10,0042 21,600 =
(i1} Short Term Instruments
Rating Al Al+ -
Amount 30,500 25,400 -
(it} Market linked debentures
a. Short Term
Rating PPMLD Al- PP-MLD Al+ -
Amount 1.000 1,000 -
b. Long Term
Rating PPMLD AA- /Stable PP-MLD AA-; Stable -
Amount 17,532 2.000 =
Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year ended March 31, 2024
Instrument category CRISIL CARE Brickworks

AA-/ Stable
8,500

PP-MLD AA-/ Stable
4.392
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43, Regulatory disclosures - RBI (continued)
43.16 Details of transaction with non executive directors
Sr.  Name of the Non Netitiof Teaisaction For the vear ended  For the year ended
No. executive director ' March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1 Kunnasagaran Chinniah  Sitting Fecs - 0.10
2 Birendra Kumar Sitting Fees 1.98 1.68
3 Anisha Motwani Sitting Fees - 1.18
4 Ramesh Abhishek Sitting Fees 1.53 1.23
Commission paid 2.50 -
5 Kamlesh Vikamsey Sitting Fees 1.70 0.70
6 Sankarson Banerjee Sitting Fees 0.80 0.13
Commission paid 2.50 -

43.17 The Company has not sold any financial assets to securitisation/reconstruction company during March 31.2025
and March 31, 2024. Hence no disclosure has been made with respect to the same.

43.18 Unsecured Advances
Total amount of advances for which intangible securities (such as charge over the rights, licenses, authority, etc.)
have been taken, as also the estimated value of such intangible collateral - Nil (Previous year Nil)

43.19 Impact of prior years items on current year’s profit and loss: Nil (Previous year Nil)
43.20  Circumstances in which Revenue Recognition has been postponed: Nil (Previous year Nil)
43.21 Draw Down from Reserves: Nil (Previous year Nil)

43.22  Note to the Balance Sheet of a non-banking financial company as required in terms of Chapter II
paragraph 5 of Monitoring of frauds in NBFCs (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 - Nil (Previous year Nil)

43.23  Details of financing of parent company products - None (Previous year - none)
43.24  Off-Balance SPV sponsored - None (Previous year - none)
43.25 Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators - Nil (Previous year Nil)

43.26 Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators - Nil (Previous year Nil)
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43. Regulatory disclosures - RBI (continued)

43.27 Prudential Floor for ECL

As required in Appendix 11-A of paragraph 2 of annexure II ( Regulatory Guidance on Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards by
NBFC) of Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 issued
vide Master Direction DoR.FIN.REC.No. 045/03.10.119/2023-24 dated October 19, 2023 as amended.

As at March 31, 2025

Loss allowances

(provisions) as Provicois Difference
G Asset Gross carrving required under ’ . between IND AS
Asset classification as per . . / 4 Net carrying  required as i
RBI norms classification as amount as per IND AS 109 iRt per IRACP 109 provisions
per IND AS 109 IND AS (Including norms and IRACP
management norms
overlay, if any)
A B ] D E=C-D F G=D-F
Performing assets
Standard Stage 1 31.838.80 130.12 31,708.68 127.57 2.55
Stage 2 - - - e %
Subtotal (i) 31.,838.80 130.12 31.708.68 127.57 2.58
Non performing asstes
(NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 - - - - -
Doubtful Stage 3 - - . - -
Loss Stage 3 - 5 b= = =
Subtotal (ii) B - - - -
Stage | 31,838.80 130.12 31,708.68 127.57 255
Total Stage 2 - . - - -
Stage 3 - - - = s
Total 31,838.80 13012 31,708.68 127.57 2.55
As at March 31, 2024
Loss allowances
(provisions) as Praiidons Difference
Asset classification as per .A“EF GEAtTaTsing, Tequael Uiy Net carrying required as hwen [ND ¥
RBI norms classification as amount as per  IND AS 109 ——— IRACP 109 provisions
per IND AS109  IND AS (Including pe;“rﬁls and IRACP
management norms
overlay, if any)
A B C D E=C-D F G=D-F
Performing assets
Siandard Stage | 30.051.53 120,46 29.931.07 120.46 -
Stage 2 800.30 3.20 797.10 3.20 -
Subtotal (i) 30.851.83 123.66 30.728.17 123.66 -
Non performing assets
(NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 - - 3 - -
Doubtful Stage 3 - - - - =
Loss Stage 3 - i a = E
Subtotal (ii) - - = o -
Stage | 30,051.53 120.46 29.931.07 120.46 -
Total Stage 2 800.30 3.20 797.10 3.20 -
Stage 3 = = & y

Total 30.851.83 123.66 30.728.17 123.66
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iii)

iii)

)

iv)

Regulatory disclosures - RBI (continued)
Disclosure on liquidity risk

Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)

Asar Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Number of significant counterparties* 9 5
Amount of borrowings from significant counterparties ** 10,346.58 6,U89.85
oy of Total deposils NA NA
Uy of Total liabilities # 20.85% 17.84%

* “§ gnificant counterparty” is defined as a single counterparty or proup of connected or affiliated counterparties accounting 1n aggregate for more than 1% of the NBFC-
NDSI's total liabilities, However in case of listed Non convertible debentures single counterparty has only been consider for the purpose of above ratio as the data for
aroup of connected or affiliated counterparties is not available with RTA.

** Represents principal amount

# Total liabilities = Financial Liabilities + Non - Financial Liabilities

Top 20 large deposits

The Company being a Systemically lmportant Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company registered with Reserve Bank of India, does not accept public
denosits.

Top 10 borrowings

As at Asat
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2024
Amount of Borrowings from top 10 lenders* 10.906.58 7.571.85
Us of Total Borrowings ** 29.26% 23.75%
* Represents principal amoun
** Total borrowings represents debt securities = borrowings (other than debt secunities)
Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Name of the product Amount % of Total Liabilities # Amount % of Total Liabilities #
Redesmable non-convertible debentures 3231768 8387 25,329.81

Commercial paper 3.826,20 9.93% 5.894.57

Borrowings other than Debt Securities
Clearcorp Repo Order Matching System

{CROM) - - 66038 1.93%
Term Loan from NBFC 113346 2.95% - -
Total 3727943 96.74 "% 11.884.76 93.42%
Stock ratios: Asat Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Commercial papers
as a %o of total public funds * 10.26%
a5 a %o of total liabilities # 9,954,
as a %o of fotal assets 8.05%

Non-convertible debentures (original maturity
of less than one year)

as a %o of total public funds * 0.00% 0.00%
as a %o 0f toal Tiabilities # .00 0.00%
as a “e 0f 1002l assets 000" 0.00%

Other short-term liabilities**

as a ®e of 1mal public funds* 44.05%
as a “w ol total liabilities 2 41.71%
as a Y of total assets 33.35%

* Total public funds represents debl securities = borrowings (other than debt securities)
** Other Short- term liabilities represent all the liabilities whose residual maturity is less than |2 months
# Total liabilities = Fi ial Liabilities + Non - Fi ial Liabilities

Institutional set-up for liguidity risk management
The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted the Asset Liability Management Commitiee and the Risk Management Committee.
The Asset Liability Management Committee, inter alia -

{a) Implement and administer guidelines on Asset-Liability Management approved by the Board and its revision. if any

(b) Monitor the asset liability gap and overcome the asset-liability mismatches, interest nisk exposure, ete.; Strategize action to mitigate risk associated with the asset
liability gap:

{¢) Develop risk policies and proced and verify adh 1o various risk parameters and prudential limits; review the sk monitoring system and ensure effective risk
management; and

(d) Ensure that the credit and investment exposure 1o any party | Company / group of parties or companies does not exceed the internally set limits as well as statutory
limits as preseribed by Reserve Bank of India from time to time.

The Company ensures sufficient Ligquidity Cushion is maintained in the form of Cash and cash equivalents and Investments in liquid securities. These assets carmy
minimal credit risk and can be liquidated in a very short period of time. This takes care of immediate obligations while continuing to honour our commitments as & going
concern, The Company continues to focus on developing a diversified funding model to achieve an optimum cost of funds while balancing liquidity.




Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)

{Currency * Indian rupees in million)

44. Other disclosures

44.01 Details of dividend declared and paid during the financial y car 2024-25

Net profit for the Dividend Pay Out

Accounting period accounting period | Rate of dividend | Amount of dividend Ratio
2023-2024* 86U 42 270% 30940 35.59%
Half vear ended September 30, 2024 604,71 140% 160.43 26.53%
# Interim dividend delcared and paid for vear ended March 31, 2024

44.02 Details of open interest for derivative instruments

44.02(a) Open interest in interest rate derivatives:
As at March 31, 2025 : Nil
As at March 31, 2024 : Nil

44.02(b) Open interest rate futures as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 with exchange : Nil

Long Position Short Position
Maturity groupin N N X
LR Ninaey ol Number of units umberal Number of units
contracts contracts

< | month = a = -
1-2 months - 7 u u
2-3 months 5 - .. -
3-6 months = = = =
0-12 months - - » -

44.03 Foreign currency

Foreign currency transaction for the vear ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

For the vear ended| For the year ended
Nature March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advisory Fees Income 2.50 -
(ommunication Expenses (.64 =
Travelling Expenses 0.30 .
Purchase of Securities - 1,589.75
Director Sitting Fees B 0.10

44.04 There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund as at March 31, 2025 (Previous vear Rs, Nil).

44.05 The Company has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts (including derivative contracts) are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the
vear end, the Company has reviewed and ensured that adequate provision as required under any law/ accounting standards for material foreseeable losses on
such long term contracts (including derivative contracts) has been made i the books of accounts.

44.06 Sectoral exposure

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Total Exposure Gross NPAs Percentage of Gross | Total Exposure Gross NPAs Percentage of Gross

Sector NPAs to total NP As to total
exposure in that exposure in that
sector sector

Capital Market* 31,838.80 - 0% 30,851.83 - 0%

Total 31.838.80 - - 30.851.83 - -

* Sector considered based on the type of loan.

44.07  Intra Group Exposure

Particulars

As at March 31. 2025

As at March 31, 2024

i) Total amount of intra-group exposures (Refer Note 39) BO.84 75.03
i1} Total amount of top 20 intra-group exposures 59.84 75.93
1) Percentage of intra-group exposures 1o total exposure of the

NBFC on borrowers customers 0.28% 0.25%
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Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited

Notes to financial statements (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

45. Other Statutory Information

45.A4  Relationship with Struck off Companies

The Company has not entered in any transaction with struck off companies for vear ended March 31, 2025 and March 31.2024. Also the related
balances as March 31,2025 and March 31,2024 are NIL.

45.B  The Company. as part of its normal business. grants loans and advances. makes investments, provides guarantees to and accepts borrowings from its
customers, other entities and persons. These transactions are part of the Company's normal business and are undertaken in accordance with the
guidelines prescribed by the RBIL
Other than the transactions described above, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities. including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the
understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company
{Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has also not received any fund from any parties (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company
shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries")
or provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

45.C  There are no unrecorded transactions in the books of account. surrendered or disclosed as income during the periods in the 1ax assessments under the

Income Tax Act. 1961,

45D  The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property.

45.E  The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
45.F  The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
45.G T'he Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the

same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further. there are no instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with.

46. The Company has complied with the Rule 3 of Companies ( Accounts) Rules, 2014 amended on August 5.2022 relating to mamtenance of electronic
books of account and other relevant books and papers. The Company’s books of accounts and relevant books and papers are accessible in India at all
times and backup of accounts and other relevant books and papers are maintained in electronic mode within India and kept in servers physically
located in India on daily basis.

47. Disclosures under Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013, and Indian Accounting Standards have been made to the extent applicable to the
Company.

48. Previous year's figures have been regrouped re-classified wherever necessary in line with the current year's presentation.

As per our report of even date attached.
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